
 
AGENDA 

COUNCIL MEETING 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK  

September 25, 2018 
1:00 pm 

 
A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
B. DELEGATIONS 

 
1. Registered Apprenticeship Program 

- Email, dated September 10, 2018, with RAP brochure 
2. Update on Heritage Acres 

- Letter from Heritage Acres, dated September 17, 2018 
3. Placement of Coal Cars – Hamlet of Lundbreck 

- Letter from George Dowson, received September 20, 2018 
 

C. MINUTES 
 

1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes 
- September 11, 2018 

2. Council Meeting Minutes 
- September 11, 2018 

 
D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

 
E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
1. West Path Delivery Project 

- Recommendation to Council from Director of Development and Community Services, dated 
September 19, 2018 

2. Amendment to the Animal Control Bylaw (Hamlet Chickens) 
- Recommendation to Council from Director of Development and Community Services, dated 

September 18, 2018 
3. Ron Sekella Micro Farm Concept Plan 

- Recommendation to Council from Director of Development and Community Services, dated 
September 18, 2018 

4. First Student Delegation Presentation 
- Recommendation to Council from Director of Operations, dated September 19, 2018 
 

F. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S (CAO) REPORTS 
 

1. Operations 
 
a) Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Briefing 

- Briefing dated September 18, 2018 
b) Operations Report 

- Report from Director of Operations, dated September 19, 2018 
 

2. Planning and Development 
 
a) Letter of Concern – Riverview Wind Farm 

- Recommendation to Council from Director of Development and Community Services, 
dated September 18, 2018 

 
3. Finance  
 

Nil 
 

4. Municipal 
 
a) Interim Chief Administrative Officer Report  

- Report from Interim Chief Administrative Officer, dated September 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
G. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
1. For Information   

 
a) Informational Correspondence 

- Recommendation to Council from Interim CAO, dated September 20, 2018, covering: 
- Letter from Alberta Recreation & Parks Association, dated August 29, 2018 
- Letter from Natural Resources Conservation Board, dated September 2018, with 

Annual Report 
- Letter from AltaLink, dated September 5, 2018, with brochure 
- Letter from AltaLink, dated September 7, 2018 
- Letter from AUC, received September 10, 2018, regarding Castle Rock Ridge 

Phase II 
- Letter from AUC, received September 10, 2018, regarding Riverview 
- Notice of Shareholders Meeting, Castle Mountain Resort Inc., received 

September 6, 2018 
- Email, received September 19, 2018 
- Thank You Card, received September 19, 2018 

 
H. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS 

 
Reeve Quentin Stevick – Division 1 
   
Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2 
 
Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3 

Oldman River Regional Services Commission 
- Minutes, dated July 7, 2018 

Beaver Mines Community Association 
- Minutes, dated September 8, 2018 

 
Councillor Brian Hammond - Division 4 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5 

Crowsnest / Pincher Creek Landfill Association 
- Minutes of August 15, 2018 

 
I. CLOSED MEETING 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 



Tara Cryderman 

Subject: FW: Mechanic RAP student 

Thanks Tara, 

I can make it to the 25th Council meeting. Would it be okay to simply give enough brochures for each member 
and then speak to the program? It will be short and sweet for sure! 

Thanks and have a great evening ... 
John 

On Mon, Sep 10, 2018 at 1:51 PM, Tara Cryderman <AdminExecAsst@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca> wrote: 

Hi John, 

Hope your summer was great! 

I can schedule you as a delegation for September 25, 2018 at 1 :00 pm to come explain and present to Council 
about the RAP project. 

Let me know if the 25th will work for you. I would need you to send me the info to be part of the Council 
package, no later than September 19. 

Dele·gations are allotted 10 minutes to present and then there is a question and answer time after, if 
Councillors have any questions. 

Take care, 

Tara 

Tara Cryderman 

Executive Assistant 

P.O. Box279 

103 7 'Herron A venue 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 

Phone: 403.627.3130 

Fax: 403.627.5070 

Email: tczyderman@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca 

1 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
B1







September 17, 2018 

MD of Pincher Creek 
Box 279 
Pincher Creek, Alberta 
TOK 1WO 
ATTN : Tara Cryderman 

Dear Ms. Cryderman: 

HERlTAGE····. ·. 
Acres RECEIVED 

SEP 1 8 2018 
M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

I am writing to request the opportunity to present at your next council meeting on 
September 25, 2018. As a delegation I will provide council with an update of events at 
Heritage Acres. 

Your consideration is appreciated. 

Kind regards , 

Mark Barber 

Heritage Acres 
Box 2496 
Pincher Creek, Alberta 
TOK 1WO 

Phone: 403-627-2082 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
B2





Board of 
Directors  
President – Ken Harness
Past President – Ken Lewis
Vice President – Betty Heppner 
Secretary – Diana Reed
Treasurer – Renita Lewis
Director – Anna Welsch
Director – Pat Harness
Director – Gerald Lewis
Director – George Mowat
Director – Gary Visser
Director - Lorne Cooley
Director – Leonard McGlynn
Director – Bill Elton 
Director – Jim Cameron
Director – Michael Cousineau
Annual Show Chairperson – Eileen McGlynn
Horse Show Chairperson – Brant Lewis
Fall Fair Chairperson – Betty Heppner 
Harvest Gala Chairperson – Anna Welsch
Breakfast w Santa Chairperson – Maureen Mitchell 
Hillsview Ladies Chairperson – Debbie Berg
Policy Chairperson – Rick Bell  
Membership Chairperson – Gloria Bond



Garage Sale  - May 12th



Horse Show/ Chuck Wagon Supper
June 9th



Flower and Quilt Show
July 21st



Annual Show 
August 3, 4, & 5



Fall Fair 
September 15



Harvest Gala 
October 12th



Candle Light Church Service
December 7th



Breakfast With Santa 
December 8th



Attendance Stats 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Visitors 

Visitors



Barn Painting 





Hiking Trail 



Other Projects 
• Web Site – Facebook Presence 
• Tour Program 
• Heritage Arts Program 
• Library
• Past Perfect Accessioning Software
• Accessioning Policy
• Disaster Response Policy  
• Financial Statements
• Accreditation – Recognized Museum
• Council Presentations  



M. D. of Pincher Creek No. 9 
Box 279 
Pincher Creek, AB. TOK lWO 

Dear M.D. Reeve and Councillors: 

 
 

 
September 18, 2018 

Recently Ron Peeters, a resident of Lundbreck, donated 2 coal cars to the Lundbreck Citizens 
Council. As coal mining was an integral part of Lundbreck's history, we felt that placing these 
cars by the entrance into Lundbreck would be appropriate. We would also like to put up a sign 
with some history of coal mining in and around the Lundbreck area, written on it The cars and 
sign would be situated where the picnic table now stands, beside the flower gardens and the 
Patton Park committee would move their sign as well. The cars would be mounted on rails 
(supplied by Ron) and the tops would be securely covered, so there would be no access to the 
inside of them. 

As the M.D. owns this property, the Lundbreck Citizens Council is asking for permission to 
situate these cars and sign in this area. If permission and a development permit is granted, we 
ask if the M.D. would also consider waiving the Development Permit fee for this project. 

Thank you for your consideration to this matter. 

Yours truly, 

George Dowson 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
B3











---------------

=-==.-



----------------------------
---------- ------ ---• --------------





 

MINUTES 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK  
September 11, 2018; 9:00 am 

 
Present: Reeve Quentin Stevick, Councillors Brian Hammond, Bev Everts, Rick Lemire and 

 Terry Yagos 
 
Staff: Interim Chief Administrative Officer Sheldon Steinke, Director of Operations Leo 

Reedyk, Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, and 
Executive Assistant Tara Cryderman 

 
Other: La Vonne Rideout, Pincher Creek Family Centre 
 
Reeve Quentin Stevick called the meeting to order, the time being 9:00 am.  
 
A moment of silence was observed, recognizing the anniversary of September 11, 2001. 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 
 

Councillor Rick Lemire 
 
Moved that the Council Committee Meeting Agenda, for September 11, 2018, be 
amended, the amendment as follows: 
 
- Addition to Round Table 6a – ICF Committee Appointments 
- Addition to Round Table 6b – Consultant Services for Collective Bargaining   

     Agreement revisions and Lead Negotiator; 
 

And that the agenda be approved as amended.  
       Carried 
 

2. Closed Meeting Session  
 
Councillor Bev Everts 
 
Moved that Council close the Council Committee Meeting to the public for discussions 
regarding the following, the time being 9:05 am:   
 
- Public Works Call Log – FOIP Section 16 

Carried 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos 
 
Moved that Council open the Committee Meeting to the public, the time being 9:30 am.  
 
       Carried 
 
 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
C1



Council Committee Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 4 
September 11, 2018 
 

 
 

3. Child Care in the Area  
 
La Vonne Rideout, Executive Director with Pincher Creek Family Centre, attended the 
Council Committee Meeting to discuss childcare in the area.  

The Town of Pincher Creek has hired Ms. Rideout as a consultant regarding supporting 
and solving the need for childcare in the area.  

The early years of childhood are critically important to the foundation of success in life.  
 
A history of the review and need of childcare was provided.  
 
There is a need for 120 childcare spaces in the area. This need is not currently being met. 
There is currently approximately 87 spaces available in the area.  
 
A Day Care Committee was created and approached both the elementary schools within 
the Town of Pincher Creek. Each School had an existing daycare within their facilities.  
 
There is currently a temporary site at St. Michaels School. This centre is for years zero to 
12 years of age.  
 
Canyon School was awarded a grant that allows additional funding to improve their care, 
and offer care at $25 per day. Their license is for children between 3 years and 6 years.  
 
This has created a two-tiered system, which is an additional issue for consideration.  
 
A meeting was held last week with government officials to further discuss this issue.  
 
What can the MD do at this time? The Town has committed $300,000 towards this issue.  
 
Livingstone Range School Division holds a license for childcare; this is highly unusual in 
the province.  
 
The Town of Pincher Creek has acknowledged the need for quality childcare, and have 
created a not for profit organization for this issue; this is highly unique as well.  
 
Licensing of the facilities was discussed and explained. 
 
At the time of Children’s World Day Care closing, the number of rural families affected 
was approximately 35%.  
 
Childcare is a key point for economic development.  
 
Day homes were mentioned.  
 



Council Committee Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 4 
September 11, 2018 
 

Livingstone School in Lundbreck was mentioned. There seems to be a good core 
population within this area as well. Perhaps this school could be included in the available 
spaces.  
 
The financial burden of multiple sites within the area was mentioned.  
 
The opportunity to provide choices to families, with regards to childcare, was mentioned.  
 
There are two regulated, and accredited, day homes within the area. This was explained 
further.  
 
The cost of childcare was discussed. The costing schedule is very confusing. Subsidies 
are available for families, based on income.  
 
The rationality of why the MD should be involved with this issue, and the importance of 
childcare to the entire area, was provided.  
 
Housing and childcare are vital to promoting, and inviting, industry to the area.  

 
4. Attendance at the Fall RMA Convention 

 
It was determined that Reeve Quentin Stevick, Councillors Bev Everts, Terry Yagos and 
Brian Hammond, with Interim CAO Sheldon Steinke, will be attending the Fall RMA 
Convention.  
 

5. Scheduling of Community Meeting – Kenow Fire 
 

The need for a facilitator is necessary. David Green was suggested, with Dan McKim as 
an alternate.  
 
The communication protocol should be moved to the first agenda item.  
 
It was suggested that each agency present a short introduction of themselves. Perhaps the 
video shown to Council from Parks Canada could be shown to the Public?  
 
The MD is not responsible for fire fighting, this is the responsibility of Emergency 
Services Commission; this should be communicated with the public. 
 
Print information should be available. The communication protocol is an important 
document to hand out.  
 
Serving food was suggested. This will require some type of pre-registration for numbers. 
It was suggested to have Twin Butte General Store (Jenny) cater the event.  
 
October 29, 2018, commencing at 6:00 pm was suggested. An alternative date was 
October 30, 2018.  
 



Council Committee Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 4 
September 11, 2018 
 

A sound system is necessary. David Green has a system that may be available.  
 
The question and answer session is very important.  
 
The agenda will be revised, based on the suggestions.  
 

6. Round Table Discussion 
 

a) ICF Committee Appointments 
 
The Town of Pincher Creek has appointed three Councillors to the ICF Committee. It 
was suggested that the MD appoint two, as three is a majority of the MD Council.  
 
It is recommended that two Members of the MD Council will be appointed to the ICF 
Committee.  
  

b) Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 

This will be added to the agenda to this afternoon’s agenda.  
 

Division 1: 
Nothing to add at this time.  
 
Division 2: 
- Safety Officer Appointment  

- Interviews will occur September 18-20 
 

Division 3: 
- Safety issues with regards to the Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project 

 
Division 4: 
Nothing to add at this time.  
 
Division 5: 
Nothing to add at this time.  

 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos 
 
Moved that the meeting adjourn, the time being 12:10 pm.  
 
       Carried 



 
     MINUTES     9031 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
COUNCIL MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 11, 2018 

 
The Regular Meeting of Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 was held on Tuesday, 
September 11, 2018, in the Council Chambers of the Municipal District Administration Building, 
Pincher Creek, Alberta. 
 
PRESENT Reeve Quentin Stevick, Councillors Brian Hammond, Terry Yagos, Bev Everts, and Rick 

Lemire 
 
STAFF Interim Chief Administrative Officer Sheldon Steinke, Director of Operations Leo Reedyk, 

Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, and Executive 
Assistant Tara Cryderman 

   
Reeve Quentin Stevick called the Council Meeting to order, the time being 1:00 pm. 
 
A moment of silence was observed, recognizing the anniversary of September 11, 2001. 
 
A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
Councillor Bev Everts     18/482 
 
Moved that the Council Agenda for September 11, 2018, be amended, the amendments as follows: 
 
- Addition to Planning and Development – F2c – Draft Resolution to Foothills Little Bow  

        Regarding Wind Turbine Abandonment; 
- Addition to Municipal – F4c – Consultant Services for Collective Bargaining Agreement  

        Revisions and Lead Negotiator; 
 
And that the agenda be approved, as amended.  
       Carried 
 

B. DELEGATIONS 
 
1. West Path Delivery Project – Burton Creek CS Camp 

 
Shayne Beatie, Kaili Kasper and Dennis Siemak, with TransCanada, appeared as a 
delegation to introduce Council to their proposed West Path Delivery Project – Burton 
Creek CS Camp.  
 
The presentation was shown and discussed, as well as additional photos were shown.  

 
2. School Buses 

 
Sharon Roberts, with First Student,  and Phil McGale, with Livingstone Range School 
Division, appeared as delegations to speak to school bussing during the winter months.  
 
A request was made that roads be graded earlier in the day, during the winter months.  

 
C. MINUTES 

 
1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes 

 
Councillor Bev Everts    18/483 
 
Moved that the July 10, 2018 Council Committee Meeting Minutes, be amended, the 
amendment as follows: 
 
Edit the sentence found within the first paragraph on page 2 to read “prior to first reading of 
the Code of Conduct bylaw”; 
 
And that the July 10, 2018 Council Committee Meeting Minutes be approved, as amended. 
      Carried 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
C2



9032 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
September 11, 2018 
 

2. Council Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
Councillor Brian Hammond   18/484 
 
Moved that the August 28, 2018 Council Committee Meeting Minutes, be approved as 
presented.  
      Carried 
      

2. Council Meeting Minutes  
 

Councillor Rick Lemire   18/485 
 
Moved that the Council Meeting Minutes of August 28, 2018, be approved as presented.  
 
      Carried 
 

3. Special Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos   18/486 
 
Moved that the Special Council Meeting Minutes of September 4, 2018, be approved as 
presented. 
      Carried 
 

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 

1. WiFi in the Community 
2. Terms of Reference for Beaver Mines Advisory Committee 

 
E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
1. Sponsorship of the 23rd Annual Awards of Excellence 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos    18/487 

Moved that the MD of Pincher Creek be a Silver Sponsor by donating $500.00 to the 
Chamber of Commerce, with the funding coming from Grants to Groups and Organizations 
(Account No. 2-74-0-770-2765). 

       Carried 
 

2.  Fire Services Bylaw 
 

Councillor Bev Everts    18/488 
 
Moved that Council rescind Bylaw No. 1234-13, being the Fire Services Amendment 
Bylaw.  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos   18/489 
 
Moved that the resolution be amended, the amendment as follows: 
 
To take affect January 1, 2019. 
      Amendment Defeated 
 

       Main Motion Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9033 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
September 11, 2018 
 

Councillor Bev Everts    18/490 
 
Moved that Council direct Administration to communicate to their residents that with the 
rescinding of Bylaw No. 1234-13, all costs associated with firefighting will once again be 
the responsibility of the landowner.   
      Carried 

 
3. Artwork for the Administration Building 

Councillor Rick Lemire   18/491 

Moved that the purchase of artwork for the Administration Building be postponed, pending 
the response from the Allied Arts Council of Pincher Creek.  
 

       Carried 
 

Councillor Bev Everts    18/492 
 
Moved that Council direct Administration to purchase three (3) framed Annora Brown 
prints, to a maximum cost of $500.  
      Defeated 

 
4. Bylaw No. 1272-17 - Amendment to the Animal Control Bylaw (Hamlet Chickens) 

 
Councillor Brian Hammond   18/493 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1272-17, being the Amendment to the Animal Control Bylaw, be 
given first reading.  
      Carried 
 
Councillor Bev Everts    18/494 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1272-17, be amended, the amendment as follows: 
 
Edit 6.f.(1)(a) to allow for a maximum of six (6) urban chickens upon a parcel of land.  
 
      Defeated 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos   18/495 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1272-17, be amended, the amendment as follows: 
 
Deletion of 6.f.(4)(c).  
      Carried 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos   18/496 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1272-17, being the Amendment to the Animal Control Bylaw, be 
given second reading, as amended.  
      Carried 
 
Councillor Brian Hammond   18/497 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1272-17, being the Amendment to the Animal Control Bylaw, be 
presented for third reading.  
      Not Carried Unanimously   
 
    
    



9034 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
September 11, 2018 
 

F. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER’S (CAO) REPORTS  
 
1. Operations  

  
a) Operations Report  

 
Councillor Terry Yagos  18/498 
 
Moved that the Operations report from the Director of Operations, for the period 
dated August 23, 2018 to September 6, 2018, as well as the Call Logs, be 
received as information.  

      Carried  
 

2. Planning and Development 
 

a) Bylaw No. 1289-18 – Land Use Bylaw  
 

Councillor Terry Yagos  18/499 
 
Moved that Bylaw No. 1289-18, being the Land Use Bylaw, be given first reading. 
 
     Carried 
 
Councillor Brian Hammond  18/500 
 
Moved that Council schedule the Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 1289-18 for 
October 11, 2018 at 6:00 pm., in the Council Chambers of the Administration 
Building.  
     Carried 
 

b) Micro Farms Concept Plan – Ron Sekella 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos   18/501 
 
Moved that the Micro Farm Concept Plan for Block P, Plan 921 0672; within 
W 34-7-30 W4M, be postponed, until a further Council meeting, pending further 
information regarding water sources to the proposed lots.  
 
     Carried 

 
c) Draft Resolution to Foothills Little Bow Regarding Wind Turbine Abandonment 

 
Councillor Bev Everts   18/502 
 
Moved that Council forward the resolution, regarding wind turbine abandonment, to 
the Foothills Little Bow Meeting for further consideration.  
 
     Carried 

 
3. Finance 

 
a) Uncollected Accounts Receivable 

 
Councillor Rick Lemire  18/503 
 
Moved that Council write off the balances of the accounts: BRUD013, MARR002, 
ROBI010, and ROBI011. 
     Carried 
 
 
 
 



9035 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
September 11, 2018 
 

b) Beaver Mines Park and Gazebo Lease Operator Agreement 
 
Councillor Bev Everts   18/504 
 
Moved that the Council direct Administration to begin the dialogue with the Beaver 
Mines Community Association to operate the Beaver Mines Park and Gazebo.  
  
     Carried 
 

c) Statement of Cash Position 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos  18/505 
 
Moved that the Statement of Cash Position, for the month ending August 2018, be 
received as information. 
     Carried 
 

4. Municipal  
 

a) Chinook Arch Library Board 2019-2022 Budget and Member Levy 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos  18/506 
 
Moved that the MD of Pincher Creek approve the Chinook Arch Library 
Board 2019- 2022 Municipal Levy Schedule. 
 
     Carried 
 

b) Interim Chief Administrative Officer Report 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos  18/507 
  
 Moved that Council receive for information, the Interim Chief Administrative 

Officer’s report for the period of August 27, 2018 to September 11, 2018.  
 

       Carried 
 

c) Consultant Services for Collective Bargaining Agreement Revisions and Lead Negotiator 
 

Councillor Brian Hammond   18/508 
 
Moved that Council ratify the engagement of Mr. Steve Connors as the consultant 
to support Administration on drafting revisions to the current Collective 
Agreement and to act as the lead negotiator for the upcoming Collective 
Bargaining Negotiations.  
     Carried 

  



9036 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
September 11, 2018 
 

G. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1. For Information   
  

a) Informational Correspondence 
 

Councillor Bev Everts   18/509 
 
Moved that Council receive the following documents as information: 
 
- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated August 14, 2018 
- Letter from Municipal Affairs, dated July 25, 2018 
- Letter from Environment and Parks, dated August 22, 2018, with document  
- Letter from Environment and Parks, dated August 22, 2018, with document 
- Letter from Town of Pincher Creek, dated August 24, 2018 
- Joint Council Meeting Notes, dated August 16, 2018 
- Letter from Livingstone Range School Division, dated August 29, 2018 
- Email from Alberta SouthWest, dated September 6, 2018 
- Letter from Prairie Conservation Forum, received August 28, 2018 
  
     Carried 
 

Community Foundation 
 
Councillor Bev Everts  18/510 
 
Moved that Councillor Rick Lemire, or alternate Councillor be authorized to 
attend the Community Foundation event, scheduled for October 4, 2018, in 
Lethbridge.  
     Carried 

 
 

H. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS 
 
Reeve Quentin Stevick – Division 1 

Nothing to report 
  
Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2 

Nothing to report 
 
 
Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3 

Beaver Mines Community Association 
- Minutes, dated August 18, 2018 

Agricultural Service Board 
- Minutes, dated July 19, 2018 

Oldman River Regional Services Commission Meeting 
Alberta Rural Development Network 

 
Councillor Brian Hammond - Division 4 

Childcare in the Area Meeting 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5 

Lundbreck Citizens Council 
- Standpipe  
- Coal Cars Display 
- Fencing along Patton Park 
- Snow fencing 
- One way street adjacent to the School 
- Parking along the streets 



9037 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
September 11, 2018 
 

Councillor Brian Hammond    18/511 
 
Moved that the committee reports be received as information. 
 
       Carried 

 
I. CLOSED MEETING 
 

There were no Closed Meeting Agenda Items to discuss.  
 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
 

There was no new business to discuss.  
       

K. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos     18/512 

 
Moved that Council adjourn the meeting, the time being 4:17 pm. 
 
       Carried 
 
 
 
 

              
     REEVE 

 
 
 

       
      CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: WEST PATH DELIVERY PROJECT 

PREPARED BY: Tara Cryderman DATE: September 19, 2018 

DEPARTMENT: Development and Community Services 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Department Director 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Date 
1. Delegation Presentation 
2. Camp Photos 

Date 

That the West Path Delive Pro·ect Dele ation Presentation be received as information. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the September 11, 2018 Council Meeting, representatives from TransCanada appeared as a 
delegation to introduce the West Path Delivery Project Work Camp to Council. 

The proposal is one of two proposed locations that TransCanada is considering. 

I F1NANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None at this time. 

Presented to: Council 
Date of Meeting: September 25 , 2018 

Page 1 of 1 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E1



West Path Delivery Project 
Burton Creek CS Camp 

September 2018 



Agenda 

• West Path Delivery Project scope 

• Burton Creek CS Proposed Camp 

• Site overview and scope 

• Traffic management 

• Safety policies 

• Reclamation 

• Loca I benefits 

• Camp Photos Review 

• Questions 

~ )) TransCanada 



Burton Creek CS Proposed Camp 

• Proposed camp location: NE 02-10-02 WSM 

• Proposed scope: 

• Size: Up to 13.34 acres on privately-owned and previously 
disturbed land 

• Projected occupancy: 30 to 120 (at peak construction) 

• Timeline: Commence construction: Q2 2019 
Camp occupancy: Q2 2019 - Q2 2020 
Demobilization/Remediation: Q3 2020 

~ ~ TransCanada 



Typical Site Plan 

™ '-1" 

t 
4<i7'-5" 

22- '-6'" .JO'~ 
1 1 

JO PER:.ON EXECUTNE DORM 

JO PER:.CN ,EXECUTIVE DORM J O PER!:ON EXEOUT N E DORM 

Vl'IVTP PIVTP 

75 PARKING STALLS 

232'-6" t 

N 

. r, 

~ ' 
-· 
M 

~ ~ TransCanada 



Camp features 

• Sleeping accommodations 

• Kitchen dining facilities 

• Fitness and recreation facilities 

• Laundry facilities 

• First aid treatment facilities 

• Perimeter fencing and security 

• Parking 

• Water and wastewater storage 

• Wildlife-proof garbage and recycling storage 

t ~ TransCanada 



Camp Location 

- Prtm ary HIQhWQ 

- tkcondllty Htattwa:r 
- Minar Roads --"' Palls l ~ArrH ---· 

llt'VIIICMICICKIIPnOII 
........... , ,._,1,JOtll 

1.,20,llOo • 

BOB CIIE!F./C 
rILDl.,<HD 

0 

BURTON CREEK Cl 
ALTERNATE LOCATIOH 

0 

TransCanada 
In business to deliver 

BURTON CREEK COMPRESSOR 

NOTIFICATION MAP 

...... 
REV 
0 



Camp Location 

Burton Creek Camp Sirte Overview Map 
in 

IN.E.1/4 Sec.2 Twp.10 Rge.2 W .. 5M. 

t )) TransCanada 



Safety 

• Gated access with security monitoring (in the evening) to provide 
safety, security, and adherence to Code of Conduct. 

• A licensed security guard will patrol the area from 6 a.m. - 6 p.m. 

• This camp has a ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY with respect to drugs 
and alcohol. 

• Residents found to be under the influence of alcohol or behavior­
altering drugs will not be permitted in camp and will be removed 
with all camp privileges canceled. 

• Firearms, pets, and recreational vehicles are not permitted. 

• The camp will be equipped with fire alarm safety . 

t ~ TransCanada 



Traffic Management 

• Workers will be bused from Calgary (or other designated 
locations) to site at the beginning of their work shifts. 

• Daily bussing to site from camp and back will be provided. 

• Reduced speeds will be implemented (Hwy 22 - Maycroft). 

• Signage will be erected in coordination with Alberta 
Transportation and the MD. 

~ ~ TransCanada 



Reclamation 

• Once Project construction is complete, NGTL will commence the 
process of demobilizing the camp as early as Q2 2020. 

• Reclamation of the lands will include: 

• Camp facilities will be removed. 

• Any grade material will be replaced and the area returned to 
prior contours. 

• Topsoil will be replaced. 

• Site will be revegetated with an appropriate seed mix as 
approved by the landowner. 

t ~ TransCanada 



Local opportunities 

• NGTL is committed to working with the M.D. of Pincher Creek to 
ensure mutually beneficial outcomes. As part of this commitment, 
we welcome applications from local vendors for contracting and 
employment opportunities. 

• Anticipated employment opportunities include: 

• Camp operations 

• Catering 

• Housekeeping 

• Maintenance and service jobs 

• The temporary construction activities will also generate increased 
demand for local goods and services. 

~ ~ TransCanada 



Rocky Mountarn Region = Wholly Owned Natural Gas PlpeUne 

- Partially Owned Natural Gas Pipeline 

-• Natural Gas Pipeline In Development 

Oil Pipeline 

_.. Oil Pipeline Under Construction 

=• Oil Pipeline In Development 

K 

• In 2017, TransCanada 
contributed rv $916,000 in 
property tax dollars in the 
MD of Pincher Creek. 

• It is estimated that camp 
would pay approximately 
$30,000 in property taxes 
in 2020 to the MD of 
Pincher Creek. 

~ ~ TransCanada 



i 

Contact Us 

West Path Delivery Project 
1.844.551.0054 

westpathdel ivery@tra nsca nada. com 

Dennis Siemak 

Project Manger 

Dennis Siemak@TransCanada.com 

Shayne Beattie 

Workforce Accommodations Specialist 

Shayne_Beattie@Tra nsCa nada .com 

Spencer McKay 

Land 

Spencer McKay@TransCanada.com 

Kaili Kasper 

Community Relations 

Kaili Kasper@TransCanada.com 

~ ~ TransCanada 



Camp Photos 















Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: AMENDMENT TO THE ANIMAL CONTROL BYLAW 
(HAMLET CHICKENS) 

PREPARED BY: Roland Milligan DATE: 2018-09-18 

DEPARTMENT: Development and Community Services 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Date 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Bylaw No. 1272-17 

APPROVALS: 

~~~~~~~~~- ~@/4/tg 
Department Director Date 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Date 

That Council give third and final reading to Bylaw No.1272-17, being an amendment to Bylaw No. 
1198-10, being the Animal Control Bylaw. 

BACKGROUND: 
There is interest from Hamlet residents in raising chickens on their residential parcels within Hamlet 
boundaries. 

Bylaw No. 1272-17 (the Bylaw), as an amendment to Bylaw No. 1198-10, the Animal Control Bylaw was 
drafted and presented to Council at the September 11 , 2018 Council meeting. 

There was a section in the proposed bylaw that spoke to licensing requirements that was removed prior to 
second reading. 

The cleaned up bylaw is before Council for third and final reading. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
Fine revenue. Collected for infractions. 
Costs associated with the contracting of the Animal Control Officer. 

Presented to: Council Meeting 
Date of Meeting: 2018-09-25 

Page 1 of 1 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E2



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK 
BYLAW NO. 1272-17 

A bylaw of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9, in the Province of Alberta for the 
purpose of amending Bylaw No. 1198-10, being the Animal Control Bylaw. 

WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, Chapter M.26 and amendments thereto, 
allows a municipality to pass bylaws regulating and controlling wild and domestic animals and 
activities in relation to them; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A 2000, Chapter M.26 and amendments 
thereto, allows a municipality to impose fines and penalties for infractions of the bylaws; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 in the 
Province of Alberta, duly assembled does hereby enact the following: 

', 

1. This Bylaw may be cited as "THE ANIMAL CONTROL BYLAW .AMENDMENT 
BYLAWNO. 1272-17". 

2. Amendments per Schedule A attached. 

3. This bylaw comes into force and effect upon third and final passing thereof. 

READ a first time this 11th day of September, 2018. 

READ a second time this 11th day of September, 2018. 

READ a third time and finally passed this ___ day of _____ __, 2018. 

Reeve Chief Administrative Officer 



Schedule A 

1. Add to Section 3. Definitions, of the Animal Control Bylaw, new definitions as 
follows: 

"Chicken" means a domesticated fowl that is kept for egg or meat production or as a 
pet, but does not include a turkey, goose, duck, artificially reared grouse, partridge, 
quail, pheasant or ptarmigan; 

"Coop" means a fully enclosed weather proof structure and attached Outdoor 
Enclosure used for the keeping of Urban Chickens, that is no larger than 1 O m2 (108 
fi2) in floor area, and no more than 2.4m (8 ft) in height; 

"Hen" means a domesticated female chicken; 

"Outdoor Enclosure" means a securely enclosed, roofed outdoor area attached to and 
forming part of a Coop having a bare earth or vegetated floor for Urban Chickens to 
roam; 

"Rooster" means a domesticated male chicken; 

"Urban Chicken" means a Hen that is at least 16 weeks of age; 

2. Add to Section 6. Restrictions Respecting Land Use to include the following: 

6. f. Chickens 

(1) Within the boundaries of a Hamlet as defined within this bylaw: 

(a) A person may keep up to a maximum of four ( 4) urban chickens upon a parcel 
ofland 

(b) no person shall: 

_ keep a Rooster 

_ keep a Hen, other than an Urban Chicken 

(2) Within a Grouped Country Residential District as defined within the Land Use Bylaw, 
Chickens may only be kept upon or in any land, house, shelter, room or place, building 
structure, or other premises in accordance with the following limits: 

Residential Parcel Size Allowable Number of Chickens Per Parcel 

1.22 ha- 1.61 ha (3.0 - 3.99 ac) 30 
1.62 ha- 2.02 ha (4.0 -4.99 ac) 45 
2.03 ha-2.42 ha (5.0-5.99 ac) 60 
2.43 ha-4.04 ha (6.0-9.99 ac) 75 
4.05 ha (10 ac) 90 

(3) Any person who contravenes Sections 1 or 2 is guilty of an offence. 

(4) Responsibilities of the Urban Chicken Owner 



_ Are required to follow procedures outlined by the Canadian Food 
Inspection Agency to reduce potential disease outbreak. 

(5) A person who keeps one or more Urban Chickens within a Hamlet or Chickens within 
a Grouped Country Residential District must: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(g) 

(h) 

(i) 

G) 

(k) 

(1) 

(m) 

(n) 

provide each Chicken with at least 0.37 m2 (4 ft2) of coop floor area, and at 
least 0.92 m2 (10 ft2

) of roofect'outdoor enclosure; with all structures meeting 
the setback requirements of the land use district in which the parcel is located 
and as established within the Land Use Bylaw. 

provide and maintain a floor of any combination of vegetated or bare earth in 
each outdoor enclosure; 

provide and maintain, in each coop, at least one perch, for each Chicken, that 
is at least 15 cm (0.5 ft) long, and one nest box; 

keep each Chicken in the enclosed area at all times; 

provide each Chicken with food, water, shelter, light, ventilation, veterinary 
care, and opportunities for essential behaviors such as scratching, dust-bathing, 
and roosting, all sufficient to maintain the Chicken in good health; 

maintain each Chicken enclosure in good repair and sanitary condition, and 
free from vermin and obnoxious smells and substances; 

construct and maintain each Chicken enclosure to prevent any rodent from 
harbouring underneath or within it or within its walls, and to prevent entrance 
by any other animal; 

keep a food container and water container in each coop; 

keep each coop secured from sunset to sunrise; 

remove leftover feed, trash, and manure in a timely manner; 

store manure within a fully enclosed structure, and store no more than three 
cubic feet of manure at a time; 

remove all other manure not used for composting or fertilizing and dispose of 
same in accordance with Municipal District bylaws; 

follow biosecurity procedures recommended by the Canadian Food Inspection 
Agency to reduce potential for disease outbreak; and 

keep Chickens for personal use only. 

(6) Any person who keeps Urban Chickens within a Hamlet or Chickens within a Grouped 
Country Residential District in contravention of Section 4 is guilty of an offence. 



Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: RON SEKELLA MICRO FARMS CONCEPT PLAN 

PREPARED BY: Roland Milligan DATE: 2018-09-18 

DEPARTMENT: Development and Community Services 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Date 
1. Revised Page for Concept Plan -

Domestic Water Supply 

t APPROVALS: 

Roland Milligan 

Department Director Date 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Micro Farms Concept Plan, required for the proposed redesignation of Block P , Plan 921 
0672 be adopted by Council. 

BACKGROUND: 

Landowner Ron Sekella has made application for amendment to the Land Use Bylaw. 

The proposed amendment is to redesignate Block P, Plan 921 0672 from Agriculture - A to Grouped 
Country Residential - GCR was presented to Council at the September 11 , 2018 Council Meeting. 

MD Planner, Gavin Scott, spoke to the Concept Plan. Mr. Scott raised a concern regarding how the 
developer planned on providing domestic water to the proposed lots . 

Due to the concerns raised, Council postponed a decision on approving the plan based on the Planner 
comments. 

The developer was contacted and informed of Council's concerns and the MD received a revised 
paragraph to the Concept Plan regarding the Domestic Water Supply for the proposed lots (Attachment 
No. I). 

The proposal to modify the domestic water service with an option for cisterns was forwarded to our 
planner for consideration. Below are the Planner's comments. 

"The applicant has chosen to modify the water service with an option for wells or cisterns. 

The option of cistern alleviates the question of what happens if a well cannot be found or 

the location cannot meet setbacks from the septic system on the property or an adjacent 

Presented to: Council Page 1 of 2 
Date of Meeting: 2018-09-25 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E3



Recommendation to Council 

property. Cisterns would allow for an alternative water source to service the proposed lots. 

The new language also leaves open the ability of the Subdivision Authority to ask for wells 

as a condition of approval if they feel water well service would be more sustainable for the 

lots. " 

There is an issue with the way the Oldman River Reservoir Area Structure (the ASP) is worded with 
regards to the requirements for a redesignation application. The requirements essentially call for two 
public meetings to be held for one issue. The following is from the ASP regarding redesignation 
applications. 

All redesignation applications must provide: 

(a) a design scheme that is presented to a public meeting held by the MD. Council and adopted by 
resolution or bylaw as required; 

In discussions with our Planner, his suggestion is that Council adopt the Concept Plan (design scheme) by 
resolution and then required Public Hearing, for the rezoning process, will cover off the public input 
requirements. 

I FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
None at this time. 

Presented to: Council Page 2 of2 
Date of Meeting: 2018-09-25 



Sewage disposal 

The attached Septic system design from January 2017 consisted of 
recommendations that sewage will be disposed of in septic tanks and fields 
on each property. Individual homeowners will be required to obtain the 
necessary permits from the authorities having jurisdiction at the time of 
development. ( See appendix 4 ) 

Domestic water supply 

The Water Act legislates that Alberta Environment needs to approve a 
hydro geological study on any subdivision that will create more than 5 
parcels out of a quarter section. This application involves the NW and the 
SW quarter sections and each quarter does not exceed 5 parcels 'out' in 
this application. Initial water wells drilled on this property indicate that there 
is adequate water for statutory household rights. Each lot will be serviced 
by either a water well or cistern. (See Hydro geological investigation 
appendix 3) 

Fire _protection 

Each acreage owner will be responsible for following current fire codes 
The project will adopt the 'FireSmart Manual 'supplied through Alberta 
Sustainable Resource Development. 

Natural gas service 

Natural gas service is close and can be accessed when needed 

Electrical service 

Electrical service is close and can be accessed when needed 

Garbage storage and disposal 

Garbage will be stored on site within wildlife proof containers. Each lot 
owner will· be responsible for its offsite disposal. 

Communications 

There is a cell tower in range of this site, local internet available as well 
\ 

School bus service 

The current road should accommodate a school bus route. 

-7-



Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: FIRST STUDENT DELEGATION PRESENTATION 

PREPARED BY: Leo Reedyk 

DEPARTMENT: 

Department 
Su ervisor 

RECOMMENDATION: 

DATE: September 19, 2018 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Date 1. Delegation Presentation 

APPROVALS: 

&pf. 1-f, olo I ( 
Date 

That Council direct Administration to investigate the possibility and feasibility of having MD 
personnel be available earlier during snow events. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the September 11, 2018 Council Meeting, representatives from First Student and Livingstone Range 
School Division appeared as a delegation to request that the MD consider having the grader operators 
begin their shifts earlier during snow event days to ensure that snow is removed from the roads prior to 
the school bus operators beginning their routes. 

The rationale is that if the roads were cleared prior to the school busses traveling on the roads, fewer 
snow days would occur. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Additional costs associated with salaries for shift premiums may occur. 

Presented to: Council Page 1 of 1 
Date of Meeting: September 25, 2018 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
E4



Tara Cryderman 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Hi Tara, 

Roberts, Sharon E. <  
Tuesday, September 4, 2018 10:03 AM 
Tara Cryderman 
Re: Sept 11 presentation talking points 
Talking Points MD presentation Sept 11 2108.pdf 

Attached are the talking points for my presentation to council on Sept 11th
. 

Phil McGale the LRSD transportation coordinator will also be with me. 

Hopefully this is all you'll need. 
If not let me know. 

Thanks. 

Sharon Roberts 
Location Manager 
First Student 

 
   

   
 

 

1 



If 
September 11, 2018 Presentation to MD of Pincher Creek Council 

Talking Points: 

Importance of education and safety for all MD children 

First Student & LRSD looking at ways to minimize number of snow days and school closures 

What can be done to have fewer school bus route cancellations due to poor road conditions 

One option being considered by LRSD is to delay school start in AM, to allow for better road and visibility 
conditions 

MD of Pincher Creek does give school bus routes priority in snow plowing, and First Student has a good 

working rapport with public works department · 

Issue of the MD graders not being out in the morning until after the school buses have run 

Our request of the MD includes: looking at neighbouring MD snow plow policies, looking at potentia l of 

having graders plowing earlier in AM, possibly as early as 6 AM. 

First Student will also be talking to Councilor Lemiere in his capacity with AB transportation and Volker 

Stevin to prioritize our secondary highways in addition to mair highways. 

Have met with Chris Ney and the Vertical Church if buses don't run 1n the afternoon, to billet students 

until parents can pick them up 

First Student & LRSD want to ensure our students don't miss school, and are kept safe while riding the 

bus, we hope the MD will consider how their grader operators can have our bus routes passable earlier 

in the day to allow for fewer route cancellations, fewer snow days and school closures. 



Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Pro ject Briefing 

September 18, 2018 updates in Bold 

The Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater project is broken into three components for tracking 
and discussion purposes, water supply, water distribution and wastewater collection, and 
wastewater treatment. 

Further capacity study was required following the Provincial Governments announcement of 
supplying water for Castle Parks and Castle Mountain Resort through the Regional Water 
System. 

A project information meeting was held September 27, 2017 in the Coalfields Hall from 4:00 to 
7:00 pm. 

1) The water supply project includes water treatment plant upgrades, piping to the Hamlet 
including a booster pump station along the route, and a reservoir and re-chlorination unit. 

P age ll 

a. Council has commissioned MPE Engineering to do the detailed design and tender 
of this project. 

b. The project is in the detailed design phase in order to prepare a tender to go out in 
the spring of 2017. A prequalification tender for contractors has been initiated, and 
will close on June 26, 2017, to be followed by a tender for the pipeline and 
mechanical components. 15 pipeline contractors and 7 mechanical contractors 
responded to the prequalification processes. 

c. MPE Engineering is doing a detailed survey of the Hamlet to confirm elevations of 
homes. A letter of introduction from the MD is being supplied to residents 
requesting the surveyors be allowed onto private property. Ongoing. 

d. Negotiations with landowners is continuing and we will know in June the pipeline 
route. Legal documents are being prepared for signatures. Completed. 

e. Confirmation of the reservoir site layout has been finalized. 
f. Construction for this component of the project is tentatively scheduled for 

completion in the spring of 2018. 
g. Location of Booster Pump Station is finalized. 
h. Capacity issues with the Regional Water System infrastructure from the Oldman 

dam reservoir to Beaver Mines resulting from the Castle Area Servicing were 
identified and have now been incorporated into the systems design. 

1. Prequalification of Pipeline and Mechanical contractors is complete. The pipeline 
contract tender documents have been distributed to pipeline contractors. The 
mechanical tender documents will be distributed in September/October. 

J. The Pipeline Tender closed on August 30, 2017with 6 tenders being submitted. 
The low tender was L.W. Dennis Contracting Ltd with a tender of $2,384,110.58. 

k. A pre-construction meeting was held with L W Dennis Contracting Ltd to go over 
project issues that had been identified. They will be mobilizing on October 30th, 
starting to fuse pipe on October 31, and starting pipeline boring soon after that. 

1. Prequalified Mechanical Contractors received copies of the Mechanical Tender for 
review. A pre-tender site meeting was held on November 1, 2017 to give 
contractors an opportunity to see the site conditions for the mechanical portion of · 
the contract. The tender close date for the Mechanical contract is November 21 , 
2017. The tender close date was extended by 2 days to accommodate contractor 
requests for more time to prepare. 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F1a



Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Briefing 

m. The Mechanical Tender closed on November 23, 2107 with 4 tenders being 
submitted. DMT Mechanical Ltd was the low tender with a tender of 
$4,816,322.70. 

n. The Mechanical Contractor noted that casings into the Oldman Dam Reservoir are 
complete. 

o. Following a winter shutdown, the pipeline contractor is looking to resume 
construction of the pipeline. 

p. The basement vault for the raw water intake building is installed. 
q. Changes to the piping requirements inside the water treatment plant have been 

initiated. 
r. As of May 17, 2018 both the mechanical and pipeline contractors are working on 

the project. 
s. Work on the reservoir site in Beaver Mines has commenced. 
t. Commissioning of the new Raw Water Intake in the Oldman Dam Reservoir has 

begun. Once completed, the existing raw water pipeline from the Water Treatment 
Plant to the South Fork hill can be cleaned to be repurposed for treated water to 
Beaver Mines. 

u. Work on the raw water booster station is progressing well including installation of 
the new power line. 

v. Work on the Castle River Crossing has been approved by the Provincial 
Government and will commence in the next couple of weeks. This is the only 
segment of pipe left to be installed. 

w. The booster stations, water treatment plant upgrades and Beaver Mines water 
reservoir are nearing completion. 

2) The water distribution and wastewater collection component of the project includes the 
installation of pipes in the Hamlet to connect residents to the water reservoir and to 
connect to the wastewater treatment force main. 

P ag e 12 

a. Council has commissioned MPE Engineering to do the detailed design and tender 
of this project. 

b. At project start up meeting with MPE Engineering, options that provided fire flow 
water capacity and gravity waste water collection for all sites were chosen. These 
options were also noted as preferred at meetings held with local residents. 

c. The detailed design phase of the project is expected to take most of 2017 with the 
tender happening once a wastewater treatment option is chosen. 

d. It is not expected to be constructed until 2018 or later, as in addition to being able 
to tie into the reservoir, connection to a wastewater system for residents requires, 
that a wastewater treatment system is operational as well. 

e. Where required, easements for utility crossings on private land are being 
identified. Consultation with land owners has been initiated. 

f. Piping options that provide full fire flow and a fire smart community are being 
reviewed. 

g. Meetings with Atco Gas have identified areas where their upgrades in the Hamlet 
and the water/wastewater systems have conflicts. The conflict areas have been 
reviewed and proposed solutions found . 

h. Detailed design and land easements are nearing completion. 
i. Council adopted a terms of reference for a Beaver Mines Community 

Association Advisory Committee to provide administration assistance in 



Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Briefing 

ensuring the project maximizes efficiency and minimizes disruption during 
construction. 

j. Packages are being developed to provide information to residents on the 
project including: applications, residential parcel information, utility bylaws, 
possible costs, etc. 

3) The wastewater treatment system component of the project includes a force main to the 
wastewater treatment system from the Hamlet. 

a. The Municipal District is awaiting word in the spring of 2017 on a grant 
application for this component of the project. On May 29, 2017 the Province 
announced the AMWWP grant funded projects, no grant was received for this 
project in 2017. 

b. Land negotiations for an easement for a wastewater force main are ongoing. 
c. Council has commissioned MPE Engineering to do a detailed design of this 

component of the project. 
d. Council has requested additional information on the Mill Creek site access. 
e. Meetings with area residents were held to discuss preliminary details of the project 

and to listen to their concerns. 
f. A meeting to discuss access to the Mill Creek site was held with the local 

landowner and MPE engineering. Options on access have been developed and are 
awaiting review and comment. 

g. A Historical Resources Assessment of the site will be initiated in October 2017. 
An informal walkabout with local landowners and Arrow Archaeology Ltd. 
occurred on the proposed site on Saturday October 21 , 2107. 

h. Boreholes and test pits to accommodate Historical Resource Impact Assessment 
and Geotechnical investigation are completed. A waiting reports before 
determining next steps. 

1. Following the determination that the Mill Creek site was not a viable site for a 
wastewater lagoon, Council directed MPE Engineering to look at other sites and 
options, as well as enter into communications with the Town of Pincher Creek to 
determine if using their lagoon at Pincher Station is a viable option. 

J. Meetings with the Town of Pincher Creek were held to look at the viability of 
using the Town' s lagoon system. 

k. A request for proposals is being developed to look for alternate sites for a 
wastewater treatment system. 

1. The request for proposals for land closed on May 10, 2018. No responses were 
received. 

m. Additional letters have been sent to landowners whose land met criteria for further 
investigation. Two landowners responded to letters indicating they are not 
interested in selling land for a waste water treatment system. 

n. Two parcels of land are being investigated to determine if they are viable for a 
wastewater treatment option. 

4) The Castle Servicing component of the project integrates the Castle requirements into the 
Beaver Mines Servicing and Beaver Mines Water Distribution components of the project. 
As well the pipeline from Beaver Mines to the Castle Parks and Castle Mountain Resort. 

Page /3 

a. A meeting was held with Alberta Environment and Parks, Alberta Tourism, 
Alberta Transportation, MPE Engineering and the MD to discuss some of the 



P age 14 

Beaver Mines Water and Wastewater Project Briefing 

technical issues associated with supplying water to Castle Parks and Castle 
Mountain Resort. A meeting with Castle Mountain Resort staff identified historical 
use and provided insight into the long term development requirements for water, 
excluding water for making snow. Note: The water line to the Castle Mountain 
Resort is not intended to supply water for snow making. The final report of the 
Castle Area Servicing Study was provided on August 4, 2017. 

b. MPE was commissioned to do the detailed design of the Castle Servicing project. 
c. On November 1, 2017, the pipeline route to Castle Mountain Resort was toured to 

determine the best route and any impediments to the project. 
d. Castle Mountain Staff provided a tour of their facilities to familiarize MPE 

Engineering with their equipment as the pipeline termination will need to be 
coordinated. 

e. On November 22, 2017 a meeting with Alberta Transportation, Alberta 
Environment and Parks, MPE Engineering and Municipal District staff identified 
project requirements for dispositions, regulatory reporting, routing, plan review 
and probable timelines. 

f. Detailed design of the project is underway and requirements for environmental 
assessments are being identified to allow for spring and summer assessment work. 

g. Land negotiations are ongoing. 
h. A request for prequalification of pipeline contractors has been initiated and 

will close on September 27, 2018. The tender documents will be provided to 
contractors who prequalify. 



Director of Operations Report September 19, 2018 

Operations Activity Includes: 

• September 10, Beaver Mines Community Advisory Committee meeting; 
• September 11 , Council meetings; 
• September 12, Joint Worksite Health and Safety Committee meeting; 
• September 13, Staff meetings; 
• September 18-20 Safety Coordinator Interviews; 

Agricultural and Environmental Services Activity Includes: 

• September 7, Transboundary Tour - outstanding receivables; 
• September 7, follow up on ASB items; 
• September 7, reporting, inspection call, solar waterer; 
• September 10, AAAF Education Committee meeting; 
• September 10, AES Departmental Meeting; 
• September 10, Strychnine letter; 
• September 11 , AES Safety Meeting; 
• September 11 , Provincial ASB Conference promotions and sponsorship duties; 
• September 11 , 12, Alberta Transportation weed patches revisited; 
• September 12, Joint Health & Safety Committee Meeting; 
• September 13-14, Emergency Livestock Emergency Preparedness Plan updating; 
• September 12 - 15, Alberta Parks fall spraying; 
• September 13, ASB Conference committee meeting (Brooks); 
• September 17, CAP grant application research and assistance; 
• Emergency Livestock Preparedness summary briefing for public - September 18 -

ongomg 

Public Works Activity Includes: 

• 671 bridge file almost complete; 

• Mow logoons and water plant; 

• Mowing ditches; 

• Sign repair and replacement; 

• Culvert repair; 

• Bridge inspection started; 

• Snow fence T-rail installation 

• Starting to put snow equipment on equipment. 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F1b



Upcoming: 

• September 20-21, Departmental Budget meetings; 
• September 24, Beaver Mines Community Advisory Group meeting; 
• September 25, Council meetings; 
• September 27, Southern Alberta Safety Council meeting; 
• October 3, Public Works Safety meeting; 
• October 4, Agricultural Service Board meeting. 

Project Update: 

• Capital Projects 
o Beaver Mines Water Supply, Pipeline - Pipe installation is complete except the 

Castle River Crossing. Mechanical Contractor has completed the water intake 
and is working on the reservoir and booster stations; 

o Beaver Mines Water Distribution and Waste Water Collection, detailed design 
and land negotiation ongoing; 

o Beaver Mines Wastewater Treatment, site geotechnical investigations completed; 
o Castle Servicing, Contractor prequalification in progress. 
o Bridge File 671 , Contractor is working on the project and nearing completion. 

Call Logs - attached. 

Recommendation: 

That the Operations report for the period September 6, 2018 to September 19, 2018 and the call 
log be received as information. 

Prepared by: Leo Reedyk 

Submitted to: Council 

Date: September 19, 2018 

Date: ~~ /V 

Date: September 25 , 2018 



WORK 
DIVISION LOCATION Approach Number CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE 

COMPLETION 
ORDER 

PUBLIC WORKS 
DATE 

979 Division 3 NE18TS R2 WS Buckhorn Road trees need to be cut on blind corners Jared Pitcher Contractor lined up October 18, 2017 

1544 Division 4 SElS T7 R29 W4 Post at cattlegueard needs welding Bob Millar Work to be done April 12, 2018 

waiting on agreement 

1558 Re getting an approach built Jared Pitcher with Development April 18, 2018 

Officer 

1617 Division 1 Trees on the west side of Kerr road need cut back Stu Weber 
add to 2019 brushing 

May 30, 2018 
plan 

1631 Division 2 
Tony Drive 

Reports a Texas gate ahead sign down SH775 Joh J To be done June 12, 2018 
to/Alvin Roberts 

1643 Division 4 SW22T7Rl WS Would like a culvert put in to solve water problem Bob Millar Fall 2018 June 26, 2018 

: ~~~~t3·;rTWP<kA Ellµ1i:~igri,is ~tt ~f &rg4nd : ' 
~ ~ ~ 

1662 Division 1 NEl0 T4 R29 W4 4232 RR29-2 
Old snow fence is falling down 

Stu Weber Fall 2018 July 11, 2018 
Will help repair it if we supply materials etc. 

1668 Division 3 SW2T6 Rl WS Snow fence repair Stu Weber fall 2018 July 18, 2018 

1670 Division 4 NW24T8Rl WS 1032TWP8-4 
Snake Trail/Tanner Road 

Jared Pitcher To have a look July 20, 2018 
Thinks approach should have a culvert put in 

1674 Division 1 RR29-5 & TWP4-Q RQ grass to be mow~d and gravel Tony Naumczyk On the 11st July 27, 2018 

1678 Division 3 NW18TS R2WS Want a new access road for future building Jared Pitcher In contact August 1, 2018 

1684 Division 2 
SE34 TS R30 W4 

5504 RR30-2 Wants grass cut on two driveways Tony Naumczyk On the list July 24, 2018 
NE3T6 R30W4 

1688 Division 3 SW 14-05-01 WS 5204 RR 1-0A 
Requesting driveway grading. Only on portion West from 

Tim Oczkowski On the list August 14, 2018 
cabin to property line. 

1690 Division 5 NW 11-7-2 WS 2120 Twp Rd 7-2 
needs temperary approach built so rig can come in to drill 

Jared Pitcher In contact August 15, 2018 
for water 

1693 Division 5 in 7-2 WSM RR 2-1 North ofTwp 7-2 Wants rock by culverts Stu Weber In contact August 16, 2018 

1695 Division 3 SW 21-5-2 WSM 2330 Twp Rd 5-3 RQ Grass Cutting Levi Anderson On the list August 20, 2018 

road washed out at south end of gravel pile. Alberta 

1701 Division 4 SW 34-7-30 W4 7507 RR30-2A 
Transportation told her the ditch that runs parellel to 

Stu Weber 
In contact with Alberta 

August 24, 2018 
road is MD issue/ditch that runs other direction is AB Transportation 
Transportation issue 

1704 Division 2 SE 17-6-28 W4 28408 Hw507 cut grass in ditch on either side of laneway from road , Tony Naumczyk On the list August 29, 2018 

1705 Division 2 NW 16-6-28 WS 6223 Rng Rd 28-4 
cut sides of road - graded part - from cattle guard to end 

Tony Naumczyk August 30, 2018 
of graded area. Not into field to house. 

1706 Division 2 SW3-4-28W4 28220 Twp Rd 4-0 
Wants traffic sign posted through colony (speed and 

Jared Pitcher being looked at September 4, 2018 
caution signs) 



WORK 
DIVISION LOCATION Approach Number CONCERN/REQUEST PUBLIC WORKS ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE 

COMPLETION 

DATE 



Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: LETTER OF CONCERN - RIVERVIEW WIND FARM 

PREPARED BY: Tara Cryderman DATE: September 18, 2018 

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Department 
Su ervisor 

Date 
1. Email from Con and Maria Schultz, dated 

August 20, 2018 

APPROVALS: ..., 

Department Director Date 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council direct Administration to respond to the email from Con and Maria Schultz, dated 
August 20, 2018, thanking them for their concerns; 

And that the email be forwarded to the Planning Advisor for further discussion during the updating 
of Section 53 - WECS from the Land Use Bylaw; 

And further that the email be forwarded to Pincher Creek Emergency Services Commission with 
re ards to the uestions re ardin fire su ression within the MD. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the September 4, 2018 Municipal Planning Commission Meeting, the following resolution was 
made: 

"Moved that the email, submitted by Con and Maria Schultz, dated August 20, 2018, 
be forwarded to Council for further direction. " 

The email is attached for reference. 

A review of Section 53 - Wind Energy Conversion Systems (WECS) of the Land Use Bylaw will be 
occurring within the next year. The issue of fire suppressant in wind turbines could be discussed then. 

Pincher Creek Emergency Services is responsible for fire suppression within the MD. All inquiries relating 
to fire suppression should be answered by them. 

Presented to: Council Page 1 of 2 
Date of Meeting: September 25 , 2018 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F2a



Recommendation to Council 

None at this time 
I FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Presented to: Council Page 2 of2 
Date of Meeting: September 25, 2018 



MDlnfo 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

MD Pincher Creek 

Maria Schultz <  
Monday, August 20, 2018 8:48 AM 
MDlnfo 
Att: Roland, development application 2018-31 to 46, Riverview Windfarm for Sept 1 
council meeting 

Re: Riverview Windmills by Enel Alberta Wind Inc. west / southwest of Castleview subdivision, for 
consideration on your Sept 1, 2018 closed door meetings - AUC 2402, MD 2018-31 to 46 

Att: Roland and Council Members 

Aug 20, 2018 

Counselors, 

I am writing in relation certainly to the above Windmill Application Development by Enel . But even moreso in 
relation to all windmill development past & future. I am glad you are working on an overall windmill 
development policy" for the Municipal District rather than a 'passionate plea - flying by the seat of ones pants' 
approach. I hope great care is made in balancing "community" with "taxable development" . I will be very 
interested in your new policy being released soon for my personal study. 

My concerns of ALL windmill activity in the MD is as follows: 

Apparently, many windmill developers are making fire suppression systems available within their design. I 
cannot fathom why ALL new development wouldn't require fire suppression systems in place as an MD 
'minimum requirement' to all new windmills. Seems absolutely silly, especially in light of having our own 
windmill bum up a mere 4 km downwind from my property a few years back, to not make this a requirement 
for all development. Luckily, this particular bum up happened in wet season & it wasn't "that" windy on "that" 
particular day and therefore this particular fire did not cause much damage. All new construction of all 
commercial and all residential development ALL have requirements built into place for fire related prevention -
Why not ALL windmill development as well? As you are well aware we have a sizable number of days each 
year that winds in that area are in excess of 100 KMH. This makes me very concerned. Concerned that the 
current structure design is new enough that it likely does not have proven track records of durability to survive 
'routine' winds of that strength. If this current model of windmill doesn't have fire suppression built in, or a track 
record of being able to handle 20 plus years of use in the winds we have - Why approve this development as it 
is applied for? 

Can I recommend that fire suppression be made mandatory for all present & past windmill development? 
Further, a 'less fire friendly' landing pad for when these units fail & fall over? Surely we do not need to also 
approve to them 'ready to burn' farmer fields for them to land in as well? 

Comments were made at the Aug 1, 2018 public development meeting that many older versions of windmills 
have these readily available as well. I am hopeful your upcoming windmill development policy will address fire 

1 



suppression systems of older windmill developments so that they have a specific time frame to add fire 
suppression technologies to older windmills. 

My concerns with Riverview Windmill Application: 

With the current application being very close to my property, I am very concerned what happens should one of 
these start a fire. With my own property being 1.5km ish UPWIND of this current development. I would ask 
"WHO" is responsible should a fire start? We are all well aware that there is not enough fire fighting equipment 
or personnel to handle a significant grass fire within the MD, especially when it starts to mow down up to 41 
structures at the same time in Castleview alone along with the Dam structural control buildings whom the fire 
rescue folk would save first without doubt. The drinking water supply at Castleview would fight a fire for 10, 
maybe 15 minutes - but after that - where does the water even come from to fight a fire?? We all know that any 
fire fighting efforts might best be made to the next structure downwind. 

I ask WHO is financially responsible for the potential fire damage when it happens? Should the developer have 
a $500 million dollar insurance policy for fire or maybe even higher, and should this be a requirement to the 
development? Or does the MD cover that insurance as I would certainly be pressing for the fact that the MD 
'approved' the development without proper fire suppression requirements, and therefore the MD is responsible 
for the ending damages should the developers not be able to cover their responsibility? 

Respectfully submitted, 

Con & Maria Schultz 

 

 

 

  

2 



INTERIM CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

DISCUSSION: 

• Sept12,2018 

• Sept 13, 2018 
• Sept 18, 2018 
• Sept 19, 2018 
• Sept 20, 2018 

• Sept 21, 2018 

UPCOMING: 
• Sept 24, 2018 
• Sept 25, 2018 

OTHER 
Director Positions 

RECOMMENDATION: 

September 12, 2018 to September 20, 2018 

Met with Fast4ward CAO selection, 
Joint Work Site Health and Safety 
Staff Meeting, 
Interviews for Safety Officer position, 
Interviews for Safety Officer position, 
Budget Preparation with HJ, 
Met with Fast4ward CAO selection, 
Budget Preparation HJC 

Alberta Tourism and CNP, Town Of Pincher Creek 
Council Committee/Regular Council. 

Job Description development ongoing with Fast4ward and 
Director of Finance position advertised. 

That Council receive for information, the Interim Chief Administrative Officer's report for the 
period of September 12,to September 20, 2018. 

Prepared by: 

Presented to: 

Interim CAO, S. Steinke 

Council 

Date: Sept 20, 2018 

Date: Sept 25, 2018 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
F4a



Recommendation to Council 

TITLE: Informational Correspondence 

PREPARED BY: Sheldon Steinke 

DEPARTMENT: 

Department 
Supervisor 

Date 

DATE: September 20, 2018 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Letter from Alberta Recreation & Parks 

Association, dated August 29, 2018 
2. Letter from Natural Resources 

Conservation Board, dated September 
2018, with Annual Report 

3. Letter from AltaLink, dated 
September 5, 2018, with brochure 

4. Letter from AltaLink, dated 
September 7, 2018 

5. Letter from AUC, received 
September 10, 2018, regarding Castle 
Rock Ridge Phase II 

6. Letter from AUC, received 
September 10, 2018, regarding Riverview 

7. Notice of Shareholders Meeting, Castle 
Mountain Resort Inc., received 
September 6, 2018 

8. Email received Se tember 19, 2018 
APPROVALS: 

Department Director Date 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That Council receive the following documents as information: 

- Letter from Alberta Recreation & Parks Association, dated August 29, 2018 
: Letter from Natural Resources Conservation Board, dated September 2018, with Annual Report 
- Letter from AltaLink, dated September 5, 2018, with brochure 
- Letter from AltaLink, dated September 7, 2018 
- Letter from AUC, received September 10, 2018, regarding Castle Rock Ridge Phase II 
- Letter from AUC, received September 10, 2018, regarding Riverview 
- Notice of Shareholders Meeting, Castle Mountain Resort Inc., received September 6, 2018 
- Email, received September 19, 2018 

Presented to: Council Page 1 of2 
Date of Meeting: September 25, 2018 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
G1a



Recommendation to Council 
- Email, received September 19, 2018 
- Thank You Card, received September 19, 2018 

BACKGROUND: 

Multiple documents were received. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

None at this time. 

Presented to: Council Page 2 of2 
Date of Meeting: September 25, 2018 



August 29, 2018 

Reeve Stevick and Council 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
PO Box 279 
Pincher Creek, Alberta TOK 1 WO 

RECEIVED 
SEP - 6 2818 

M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

Dear Reeve Stevick and all members of Council, 

Alberta 
Recreation & Parks 

Association 

On behalf of the Alberta Recreation & Parks Association (ARPA) we wish to invite you and your 
colleagues to attend the 2nd Annual Greener Facilities Conference and Expo presented by the 
Alberta Recreation and Parks Association on November 14 -15, 2018 at the Edmonton Inn and 
Conference Centre. 

In most municipalities the cost of operating facilities is a significant cost and has an impact on 
fees and taxes. The mandate of this event is to provide councils and their administrators with 
the following: 

✓ Examples from speakers addressing specific opportunities and challenges associated 
with energy efficiency and a reduced ecological footprint; 

✓ Innovative new technology products and services demonstrated by companies and 
consultants at the tradeshow expo, helping facilities deliver on their environmental and 
efficiency goals; 

✓ Best practices sharing through sessions and networking with other like-minded sector 
decision makers and practitioners; 

✓ Real-life solutions from municipalities and organizations who have already moved to 
energy efficient method s; and 

✓ Information on grants, funding and cost-saving. 

I want to highlight a few of our keynote speakers: 

❖ Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Program -Justin Smith, Energy Efficiency Alberta -
This session will overview the legislation that allows municipalities to establish 
programs that will make it more affordable for Albertans to upgrade their properties 
(commercial, residential and agricultural) without having to put money down. 

❖ Les Quinton (Town of Black Diamond) - This session will highlight key considerations in 
cost effective and greener decision making and planning. 

. . ./Pg. 2 

11759 Groat Road NW • Edmonton • Alberta • T5M 3K6 

ph: 780-415-1745 • fax: 780-451-7915 • arpa@arpaonline.ca • www.arpaonline.ca 



Pg.2 

❖ Blatchford - This session will focus on the green infrastructure and renewable energy 
that is being incorporated into the subdivision. Living, working and learning in a 
sustainable community that uses 100% renewable energy, is carbon neutral, 
significantly reduces its ecological footprint, and empowers residents to pursue 
sustainable lifestyle choices. 

Program sessions, registration and accommodation information can be found at 
https://arpaonline.ca/events/greener-facilities-conference-expo/ 

We look forward to see you there. 

Yours sincerely, 

Susan Laurin 
President 



~ 
NRCB I 

N a tural R esources 
Conservation Board 

September 2018 

To Reeve/Mayor: 

4th Floor, Sterling Place, 9940 - 106 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2N2 

T (780) 422.1977 F (780) 427.0607 
Toll Free 310.0000 www.nrcb.ca 

RECEIVED 
SEP 1 4 20~8 

M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

I am pleased to provide you with a copy of the Natural Resources Conservation Board's (NRCB) 
2017-18 Annual Report. 

Our financial reports continue to be published in the annual report issued by Environment and 
Parks. 

If you would like additional copies of this report, please contact our Edmonton office at 
780-422-1977. 

Yours truly, 

Walter Ceroici 
Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Cc: Chief Administrative Officer 

Encl.: (2) 



Natural Resources Conservation Board

Annual Report 2017-18 



Our vision: 	 To be a respected decision-maker, exemplifying integrity and foresight in the best interests of Alberta.

Our mission: 	 As a quasi-judicial and regulatory agency, the NRCB makes impartial and knowledge-based decisions across 
two distinct mandates:

	 	 •	 Under the Natural Resources Conservation Board Act, the NRCB decides if natural resource projects 
			   are in the public interest, considering social, environmental and economic effects, and
	 	 •	 Under the Agricultural Operation Practices Act, the NRCB fulfills applications and compliance 		

	 responsibilities, administers and advances policies, and conducts board reviews for confined 
			   feeding operations.
	
Our values: 	 In achieving our mission, we honour the NRCB’s core values of integrity, fairness, respect, excellence and service.

Vision, Mission and Values



Accountability 
Statement
The Natural Resources Conservation Board is accountable 
to the Minister of Environment and Parks. 

The Natural Resources Conservation Board Act (NRCBA) is the 
responsibility of Environment and Parks. 

The Agricultural Operation Practices Act is the responsibility 
of Agriculture and Forestry. A 2006 memorandum of 
understanding between the Minister of Sustainable 
Resource Development, the Minister of Agriculture and 
Rural Development, the chair, and the chief executive  
officer of the Natural Resources Conservation Board 
describes the purpose of the act, and governance and 
mandate responsibilities. 

The 2017-18 financial reports of the Natural Resources 
Conservation Board are provided in the annual report  
issued by Environment and Parks.

The chair and Board members of the Natural Resources 
Conservation Board provide strategic direction and are 
responsible for the overall governance of the organization 
and its financial reporting. The chief executive officer is 
responsible for corporate services, the delivery of the 
approvals and compliance functions of the Agricultutal 
Operation Practices Act (AOPA) and development of  
policy to support those functions, and is accountable to  
the chair and Board members for the general operation of 
the corporation.

The Natural Resources Conservation Board complies with 
the requirements of the Alberta Public Agencies Governance 
Act and the Public Agencies Governance Framework. Its 
mandate and roles, code of conduct, compensation and 
expense disclosures, and Board member competency 
framework are publicly available at www.nrcb.ca. 

Governance

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 1



Message from the Chair

I am honoured to have been appointed Board chair. I 
assumed this position in December 2017 following more 
than 10 years with the NRCB as chief executive officer. It 
was a privilege to work closely with the NRCB’s talented and 
highly professional staff on its operations side, and I am very 
proud of our accomplishments: an impressive body of policy 
to guide the administration of AOPA, development and 
implementation of the risk based compliance program and 
environmental risk screening tool, and ongoing, important 
work with all of the NRCB’s AOPA stakeholders—to name 
just a few. 

When I joined the NRCB in the spring of 2006, AOPA was 
still a relatively new piece of legislation and the NRCB’s 
mandate under AOPA was also still fresh. Policy and 
processes were still being worked out, and both industry  
and municipal stakeholders were questioning our ability to 
deliver the legislation fairly and with accountability. A 
turning point was the establishment of the Policy Advisory 
Group (PAG), a multi-stakeholder advisory body co-chaired 
by Agriculture and Forestry and the NRCB. Over the years 
PAG has provided sound advice and been an invaluable 
resource for the NRCB.

As Board chair I am looking forward to leading the NRCB 
from a new perspective and with an essentially new Board. 
Members Page Stuart and Michele Annich were both also 
appointed within the past year, and bring their experience 
and expertise, in agriculture and administrative law, 

respectively, to their work on AOPA review panels and 
project reviews under the NRCBA. Three acting Board 
members were also appointed to provide additional panel 
expertise when required. 

Since my appointment, the NRCB has been ably led  
by Walter Ceroici as acting chief executive officer. I 
appreciate his willingness to step into this interim role  
while continuing his work as director of our Science and 
Technology division. Walter’s leadership has ensured a 
smooth transition for the NRCB despite numerous changes 
in staffing, and increased workloads. 

In 2017-18 the Board issued written reasons to grant or deny 
a review of nine approval officer decisions, and conducted 
formal reviews of three approval officer decisions. The Board 
also participated in setting the terms of reference for two 
major project reviews under the NRCBA, and assisted with 
supplemental information requests for both projects. The 
Board will conduct comprehensive public review processes 
when the applications are complete. With these NRCBA 
project applications and six others on the horizon, I 
anticipate a very busy year—and years—to come. I look 
forward to these challenges, and to continuing to work with 
an exceptionally fine team.

Peter Woloshyn, 
Board Chair

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-182



Message from the Acting CEO

As acting chief executive officer since January 2018, I would 
like to thank the staff and Board of the NRCB for their support 
and for ensuring that the work of the NRCB continues to 
meet the highest possible standards. Despite the volume of 
work across the organization, timelines continue to be met, 
and the quality of work remains high. 

Several retirements and departures in 2017-18 meant the loss 
of a number of seasoned staff who were important members 
of our team. We were fortunate to fill their positions with well 
qualified new staff who are already carrying a full load. The 
changes include the December 2017 appointment of our 
former chief executive officer, Peter Woloshyn, to the 
position of Board chair. Peter led the NRCB through a period 
of transition to its current status as a mature and well-honed 
organization. I speak for all of us when I thank him for his 
leadership, and wish him every success in his new position.

Despite a continued increase in permit applications in  
the past year, NRCB approval officers not only met but 
exceeded performance targets for processing the majority of 
applications. NRCB inspectors responded to a large volume 
of complaints related to unusual weather: a hot, dry summer 

that resulted in dust issues, and a long, cold winter with 
frequent snowfalls that created manure storage issues  
for farmers and runoff issues in the spring. Unauthorized 
construction continued to be a concern and required 
considerable response time by inspectors.

Under the NRCBA, the Science and Technology division 
provided support to the Board for the proposed Cougar 
Creek, Springbank, and Special Areas Water Supply projects. 
Division staff also provided technical support to field staff on 
a wide range of compliance and permitting issues. 

Operational policy remained an important priority. It will 
continue to be an important focus to ensure a clear basis  
for NRCB response under AOPA to changes in weather 
patterns and Alberta’s agricultural landscape. I look forward 
to working with NRCB staff and stakeholders on these issues, 
and to another productive year.

Walter Ceroici, 
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 3



1.	 Consult with government and stakeholders to develop 
operational policy and technical guidelines that support 
delivery of AOPA. In 2017-18, special attention will be 
given to informing municipalities about the requirements 
of AOPA and how these requirements affect municipal 
land use planning.

2.	Use an environmental risk based approach for compliance 
activities and for reviewing permit applications for new or 
expanding operations.

Strategic Priorities

3.	Support priority cross-government initiatives, ensuring 
consistency of NRCB-issued decisions with completed 
regional land use plans. In 2017-18, the NRCB will 
continue to participate in a cross-government initiative 
that is examining the potential for a streamlined 
regulatory process for biodigesters that use manure-
based feedstock.

4.	Complete the update of board regulations and 
information documents. 

The NRCB’s four strategic priorities for 2017-18, as identified in its business plan, are:

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-184



Peter Woloshyn was appointed Board chair on December 
21, 2017, replacing Vern Hartwell, whose appointment 
expired in December 2017. 

Peter led the NRCB’s operations and corporate divisions 
from May 2006 until December 2017. As chief executive 
officer he also ensured the development of operational 
policy in consultation with the Policy Advisory Group to 
support the NRCB’s delivery of the Agricultural Operation 
Practices Act, and contributed under the Natural Resources 
Conservation Board Act to technical reviews of natural 
resource project applications. Peter oversaw the expansion 
of the NRCB’s regulatory mandate to include biodigesters 
that use a manure-based feedstock, and is a community 
advisor board member of the Alberta Land Institute,  
University of Alberta. Peter also brings 22 years of prior 
experience with Agriculture and Forestry in economic 
analysis, resource use, and work in crop insurance and 
reinsurance with Agriculture Financial Services Corporation.

Board member Glenn Selland completed his contract 
with the NRCB in August 2017. Page Stuart and Michele 
Annich were appointed Board members in June and 
August 2017, respectively.

Page Stuart is a Professional Agrologist and holds an 
Executive Masters of Business Administration. Page has 

Board 
Left to right:  
Page Stuart, Michele Annich, 
Peter Woloshyn

more than 20 years’ experience in the intensive livestock 
industry, including agricultural sustainability, operations 
management, and managing a large cattle feedlot 
through significant value-added growth. Most recently, 
Page has held positions as chair of the Alberta Cattle 
Feeders’ Association and as inaugural co-chair of the 
AgCoalition, an unprecedented collaboration of agricultural 
producer groups in Alberta. Having started her career in 
environmental research, Page has a particular interest in 
furthering agricultural sustainability, farm safety, and policy 
development and has served in multiple provincial and 
federal initiatives. She currently volunteers as a member of 
the Lakeland College Capital Campaign Cabinet. 

Michele Annich has 30 years of experience in aboriginal, 
municipal, and administrative law. Michele has represented 
Canada at the Supreme Court on aboriginal consultation 
matters, the nature and scope of treaty rights, and fiduciary 
duties. In private practice she dealt with many municipal 
development and planning issues. Michele was a full-
time hearing chair for nearly five years with the Appeals 
Commission for Alberta Workers Compensation. She 
has taught municipal and administrative law to municipal 
administrators in the Northwest Territories and Nunavut, is 
an active community volunteer, and is presently chair of the 
Board of Directors of the Family Centre of Northern Alberta.  

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 5



Agricultural Operation Practices Act
In 2017-18 the Board received requests to review nine 
approval officer decisions and reviewed three decisions.  
Two reviews were written hearings. One was an in-person 
(oral) hearing. 

Each of the three reviews addressed permit denials based 
on the applications’ inconsistency with the land use 
provisions of the counties’ municipal development plans. 
The Agricultural Operation Practices Act requires approval 
officers to deny permit applications that are inconsistent 
with the land use provisions of the municipal development 
plan, but allows the Board discretion to determine whether a 
permit should be issued. 

•	 Hutterian Brethren of Bear Canyon—Board Decision 
2017-05 / FA14003 was issued May 3, 2017 following 
a written hearing. The Board overturned the approval 
officer’s decision and directed the approval officer to issue 
the permit.

•	 Danny Friesen and Tara Warkentin—Board Decision 
2017-08 / FA17001 was issued August 14, 2017 following 
a written hearing. The Board overturned the approval 
officer’s decision and directed the approval officer to issue 
the permit.

•	 Milk & Honey Dairy Inc.—Board Decision 2018-04 / 
RA17042 was issued March 7, 2018, following an oral 
hearing. The Board upheld the approval officer’s decision 
to deny the permit application.

All decisions issued by the Board are publicly available on 
the NRCB website.

Natural Resources Conservation  
Board Act
In accordance with the Natural Resources Conservation Board 
Act, projects that are directed by Alberta Environment and 
Parks to submit an environmental impact assessment are 
subject to a review by the Board to determine if the projects 
are in the public interest. 

The Board’s public interest review process begins when 
an application has been reviewed by Alberta Environment 
and Parks and the Board, and the applicant has addressed 
any deficiencies. The timeframe for commencing the 
Board’s public interest review depends on the time required 
to review the application and the time required by the 
applicant to respond to any deficiencies.

Active files—applications for the following proposed 
projects have been submitted to the Board:

•	 Cougar Creek Debris Flood Retention Structure—
application to construct a debris flood retention structure 
and access road on Cougar Creek, near Canmore. The 
town of Canmore filed its formal application to the Board 
on August 19, 2016.

•	 Springbank Off-Stream Reservoir Project—application to 
construct a dry dam to temporarily store water from the 
Elbow River during a flood. Alberta Transportation filed its 
formal application to the Board on November 3, 2017.

Pending projects—the following project applicants have 
been directed by Alberta Environment and Parks to prepare 
environmental impact assessments. The formal applications 
have not yet been submitted to the Board:

•	 AHP Development Corporation: Amisk Hydroelectric 
Project

•	 Alberta Transportation: Special Areas Water Supply 
Project

•	 Cyclus Power Inc.: Cavus Pump Storage Generation 
Project

•	 Innergex Renewable Energy Inc.: Sundog Hydroelectric 
Project & Pelican Hydroelectric Project

•	 Stone Creek Resorts Inc.: Stone Creek Gondola Project
•	 TransAlta Corporation: Brazeau Pumped Storage Hydro 

Expansion Project

Board Activity

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-186



Performance

Core Business One: Board reviews and appeals under the Natural Resources 
Conservation Board Act and the Agricultural Operation Practices Act

Strategic priority: Complete the update of board regulations and information documents. 

Strategy Results achieved

Results achieved

Complete the update of the Board 
Administrative Procedures 
Regulation in consultation with 
NRCB staff and stakeholders.

Information requests—Board staff 
responded to numerous information 
requests regarding the Board’s public 
interest review processes under 
the Natural Resources Conservation 
Board Act and under the Agricultural 
Operation Practices Act. The Board 
Review Process Guide was updated for 

Additional priorities:

Strategy

Proactively provide opportunities 
for all participants to understand 
Natural Resources Conservation 
Board Act and Agricultural Operation 
Practices Act review and hearing 
processes through guides, public 
information sessions, and prompt, 
accurate responses to direct 
inquiries.

Identify critical issues related to 
applications under the Natural 
Resources Conservation Board Act, to 
ensure that all relevant information 
is included in the review process.

Identification of critical issues—the 
NRCB reviewed the environmental 
impact assessments for the Cougar 
Creek Debris Flood Retention Structure 
and Springbank Off-Stream Reservoir 
project applications. It contributed 
to two rounds of supplementary 
information requests in October 2017 
and March 2018 for the Cougar Creek 
project and reviewed the applicant’s 

Regulation update—the Agricultural 
Operation Practices Act Administrative 
Procedures Regulation became 
effective June 13, 2017, replacing 
the 2002 Board Administrative 
Procedures Regulation. The updated 
regulation clarifies the language of 
the previous regulation, provides for 
appeals of a permit cancellation and 
of a grandfathering determination, 
establishes processes for the appeals, 

and establishes a 10 working day 
request for review (RFR) deadline 
for enforcement orders (or longer if 
specified by the inspector). Previously, 
the only recourse to appeal a permit 
cancellation or a grandfathering 
determination was to request a judicial 
review. The new regulation therefore 
makes appeal processes more 
accessible to Albertans.

natural resource project reviews and a 
fact sheet was produced on the Board 
review process under the Agricultural 
Operation Practices Act. NRCB staff 
participated in four public information 
sessions on the proposed Springbank 
Off-Stream Reservoir project to explain 
the NRCB review process.

responses to ensure that critical 
information is addressed in the final 
application. The NRCB also provided 
“priority” questions to Alberta 
Environment and Parks and Alberta 
Transportation for the Springbank  
Off-Stream Reservoir project, and 
reviewed the terms of reference for the 
Special Areas Water Supply project in 
central Alberta. 

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 7



2015/16

2015/16

2016/17

2016/17

2017/18

2017/18

Performance measures and results

Percentage of Natural Resources Conservation Board 
decisions issued within 80 working days of the 
conclusion of reviews under the Natural Resources 
Conservation Board Act

Percentage of Natural Resources Conservation 
Board decisions issued within 30 working days of 
the conclusion of reviews and hearings under the 
Agricultural Operation Practices Act*

Not available -
no NRCBA 

reviews 
completed

Not available -
no AOPA reviews 

or hearings

Not available -
no NRCBA 

reviews 
completed

100%
6 AOPA reviews 

and 2 AOPA 
hearings

Not available -
no NRCBA 

reviews 
completed

100%
9 AOPA reviews 

and 3 AOPA 
hearings

*“Hearing” means an oral or written board deliberation. “Reviews” are written decisions that grant or deny a request for review.

Field Operations
2017-18 was a challenging year for NRCB field staff due to 
extreme weather conditions. Dry conditions in the central 
and south areas of the province created challenging dust 
issues for a number of cattle feeding operations. Cold 
temperatures and frequent snow storms in the winter 
of 2017-18 resulted in atypical snow accumulation. The 
amount of snow, combined with a rapid spring melt, 
resulted in flooding and runoff challenges for operators in 
many parts of Alberta.

Field processes remained focused on mitigation of 
environmental risk at confined feeding operations. 
The NRCB risk screening tool continued to be used for 
reviewing permit applications and compliance response.  
Operational policy development also remained a priority 
focus. Communication with operators on unauthorized 
construction and manure application on frozen or snow-
covered ground were also key priorities. 

Surface water
Inspectors continued to collect information on surface 
water conditions at confined feeding operations during 
their inspections. Four hundred and thirty four inspections 

were conducted at 230 confined feeding operations in 2017 
(multiple inspections were conducted at some operations). 
The majority of inspections were conducted at dairy, feedlot, 
and swine operations. Inspectors documented surface 
water issues at 23 operations. Of those, serious issues 
were identified at four operations. (A serious surface water 
issue involves manure contaminated water runoff from an 
operation flowing into a surface water body.)

Inspectors concluded that all of the surface water issues 
identified were preventable. In all of the cases, the operator 
addressed the surface water issues to the satisfaction of the 
NRCB. Causes of surface water issues included:

•	 poorly constructed runoff/run-on systems
•	 poorly maintained manure storage facilities
•	 poorly located seasonal feeding and bedding sites
•	 non-compliance with AOPA manure spreading setbacks
•	 runoff from manure spreading activities

The unusually dry summer of 2017 meant that the NRCB 
received relatively few complaints about surface water, 
especially in the southern part of the province.

Efficiency of review processes

Efficiency of review processes

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-188



Unauthorized construction
Unauthorized construction is a serious violation of the 
permitting requirements of the Agricultural Operation 
Practices Act. The NRCB received fewer reports of 
unauthorized construction in 2017-18; however, the number 
of incidents remained a concern. Violations were brought to 
NRCB attention via the complaint process or by operator self-
reporting. Prosecution of operators who knowingly construct 
without a permit remains a potential enforcement tool.

The NRCB addressed unauthorized construction at 14 
operations. Compliance directives were issued to seven 
operators, requiring them to cease construction and to 
apply for and obtain a permit. Appropriate enforcement 
action was taken with the other operations according to the 
NRCB’s enforcement ladder, taking into consideration the 
stage of construction and the cooperation of the operator. 
As of March 31, 2018, the majority of the operators had 
complied with NRCB requirements. One permit application 
remained in process.

Environmental risks screenings
Approval officers continued to use the environmental 
risk screening tool during the confined feeding operation 
application review process to assess the risk to groundwater 
and surface water. The tool was also used by NRCB 
inspectors to respond to complaints, and for annual follow-
up on operations that were identified under the NRCB’s 
risk-based compliance program. 

New and updated operational policies
New policy:
•	 Large Scale Country Residential Developments (for 

Determining Minimum Distance Separation) 

Updated to be consistent with the revised AOPA Board 
Administrative Procedures Regulation:
•	 Approval Officer Amendments Under Section 23 of AOPA
•	 Permit Cancellations Under AOPA Section 29
•	 Public Notice for Grandfathering Decisions

Policies that will be finalized in 2018-19:
•	 NRCB biosecurity protocol (update)
•	 Risk Based Compliance Program Follow-up (update)
•	 Response protocol for manure spills (includes coordination 

with the Alberta Support and Emergency Response Team 
(ASERT) for large-scale releases)

New and updated fact sheets
•	 Applying Manure on Frozen or Snow Covered Land 
•	 Dust Control
•	 Permits under AOPA—Information for CFO Operators 
•	 The Permitting Process for Confined Feeding Operations  

in Alberta 
•	 Unauthorized Construction under the Agricultural Operation 

Practices Act

All operational policies and fact sheets are publicly available on 
the NRCB website.

Number of facilities ranked  
low potential risk 

Number of facilities ranked 
moderate potential risk 

Number of facilities ranked  
high potential risk 

528 19 2

Number of facilities ranked  
low potential risk

Number of facilities ranked 
moderate potential risk

Number of facilities ranked  
high potential risk

531 15 3

Groundwater

Surface 
water 

1.	 Environmental risk screenings are completed as part of the review of every application received, as well as for risk based compliance program 
follow up and enforcement, as required. In 2017-18, a total of 549 facilities were assessed, involving 136 confined feeding operations. 

Environmental Risk Screenings, 2017-181

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 9



Permits
In 2017-18, the total number of completed part 2 
applications submitted to the NRCB remained consistent 
with the previous year. However, the number of permitting 
decisions issued by the NRCB increased as a result of 
applications that were carried over from 2016-17 into the 
new fiscal year. 

The average number of days to issue a decision declined 
slightly. (Days to issue a decision are measured in the 

number of working days from the point at which a part 2 
application is deemed to be technically complete to the date 
the decision is issued.) 

The majority of applications were submitted from operators 
in the central and southern regions of the province. Most 
applications were from the dairy sector, followed by the 
poultry and cattle sectors. 

Completed applications received and decisions issued

Completed applications received and decisions issued, by region, 2017-181

1.	 Based on part 2 applications, deemed complete. Approvals are permits for larger operations. Registrations are permits for smaller 
operations. Authorizations are permits for manure storage facilities where there is no change in livestock numbers. Decisions issued 
include denials, which included one approval application and three registration applications.

Region
Completed applications received Decisions issued

Approvals Registrations Authorizations Approvals Registrations Authorizations

Peace  2 0 1 3 2 2

North Central 7 3 8 8 3 5

Central 26 13 32 28 16 33

Southern 39 3 14 34 4 19

Total 74 19 55 73 25 59

Decisions issued

80

40

60

0

20

100

120

140

160

180

20
03

/0
4

20
02

/0
3

20
04

/0
5

20
05

/0
6

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

Applications received*

* Part 2 complete

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-1810



	 2017/18
Approvals	 45.4 (73 decisions)

Registrations	 40.4 (25 decisions)

Authorizations	 34.6 (59 decisions)

1.	 Applications received are based on part 2 applications, deemed complete. If an application is for more than one livestock category, 
it is listed under each applicable livestock category and is counted in each category. 

2.	 Includes bison, goats, horses, sheep, and stand-alone manure storage facilities.

Livestock 
category

Completed applications received Decisions issued

Approvals Registrations Authorizations Approvals Registrations Authorizations

Cattle  21 2 9 21 2 2

Dairy 22 4 30 20 5 31

Other2 3 0 2 2 0 2

Poultry 27 11 7 25 11 8

Swine 3 0 7 5 0 9

Completed applications received and decisions issued, by livestock category, 2017-181 

1. From the date the part 2 application is technically complete.

Average number of days to decision1 

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 11



Complaints
In 2017-18 the NRCB received 258 complaints about 156 
operations, compared with 189 complaints about 130 
operations the previous year. The increase can partly be 
attributed to unusual weather patterns in several parts 
of the province. Dust was an issue in southern Alberta 
in the summer of 2017 due to hot, dry, windy conditions. 
The winter of 2017-18 brought heavy snow fall to parts of 

1.	 Does not include operator self-reports and requests for permission 
to spread manure on frozen or snow covered land.

the province and was followed by a late spring, making 
it challenging for some operators to empty their manure 
storage facilities. In these cases the operators were forced 
to winter spread, which resulted in non-compliance 
complaints about spreading on frozen or snow covered land. 
Finally, concerns regarding unauthorized construction also 
contributed to the number of non-compliance complaints. 

Complaints received

No. of operations involved in a complaint

100

0

200

300

400

500

600

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
15

/1
6

20
16

/1
7

20
17

/1
8

Complaints total

Cattle  Cow/calf2 Dairy Mixed Other3 Poultry Swine

47 16 26 23 16 10 26

1.	 An operation may be counted in more than one category.
2.	 Cow/calf do not require a permit under the Agricultural Operation Practices Act but must comply with the manure management 

requirements of the act. 
3.	 Includes bison, goats, horses, and sheep.

Total complaints received			   258

Number of operations complained about	 156

Complaints received 2017-181 

Number of operations involved in complaints by region, 2017-18

Number of operations1 involved in complaints by livestock category,  2017-18

Peace North Central Central Southern 

4 29 66 56

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-1812



Types of complaints received by number of operations,1 2017-18

1.	 An operation may be counted in more than category.
2.	 Non-compliance includes setbacks for manure spreading and 

stockpiling, unauthorized construction, and non-compliance with 
permit conditions.

3.	 Other includes dead animal disposal, animal welfare and issues 
that do not fall under the Agricultural Operation Practices Act.

Enforcement
Due to frequent snowfalls and unusually cold temperatures 
in the winter of 2017-18, more feedlot operators than 
usual ran into difficulties with snow accumulation in their 
pens. The NRCB received 61 requests from operators (at 
51 confined feeding operations) for permission to spread 
manure on frozen or snow covered land. The Agricultural 
Operation Practices Act prohibits spreading manure on 
frozen or snow covered land without prior permission from 
the NRCB. Field staff worked with the operators to ensure 
that manure removed from the pens was managed in an 
environmentally responsible manner.
 
Dairy and hog operators empty their liquid manure storage 
lagoons each fall to ensure they have capacity for the 
winter.  Because of the exceptionally long winter in 2017/18, 
some operators were not able to spread manure from 
their lagoons in the spring and therefore had no remaining 
storage capacity. In these cases, the NRCB allowed the 
operators to land spread the lagoon contents on frozen 
or snow covered land with strict requirements in order to 
minimize any possible environmental risk.

The one enforcement order issued in 2017-18 was for a liquid 
manure storage facility that overflowed. The operator was 
ordered to clean up the spill and lower the level of the lagoon 
contents to maintain the half metre freeboard required by the 
Standards and Administration Regulation.

Seven of the compliance directives were issued by the NRCB for 
unauthorized construction. Two of the directives were for non-
compliance for using their newly constructed manure storage 
before providing the engineers’ inspection report to the NRCB. 
Both operations were required to stop using their facility until 
the engineering report was provided. One of the 10 operations 
had more livestock than its permit allowed. The directive 
required the operator to apply for and obtain a permit for the 
increased number of livestock, within a specified deadline. 

Total complaints received			   258

Number of operations complained about	 156

Complaints received 2017-181 

13%
Odour

5%
Nuisance

16%
Surface water

55%
Non-

compliance2

0%
Groundwater

11%
Other3

Compliance orders issued 2017-18

Enforcement orders			   1

Emergency orders			   0	

Compliance directives			   10

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 13



Performance

Core Business Two: Regulation under the Agricultural Operation Practices Act

Strategic priority: 
Consult with government and stakeholders to develop operational policy and technical guidelines that support 
delivery of AOPA. In 2017-18, special attention will be given to informing municipalities about the requirements of 
AOPA and how these requirements affect municipal land use planning.

Strategies Results achieved

Through workshops and one on one 
meetings, ensure municipalities are 
aware of AOPA’s permitting 
requirements and understand how 
the requirements affect the NRCB’s 
decision making process with 
respect to municipal land use plans. 
In addition, meet with specific 
municipalities about the potential to 
amend certain municipal permit 
conditions [in permits issued by the 
municipalities for confined feeding 
operations before 2002].

Continue to prioritize 
communication and enforcement 
action on issues involving 
unauthorized construction and the 
application of manure on frozen or 
snow covered land.

Continue to develop operational 
policies in consultation with the 
Policy Advisory Group.

Meetings with municipalities—the 
NRCB met with five municipalities in 
2017-18 to explain the requirements 
of AOPA and how municipalities 
can ensure land use objectives in 
their municipal development plans 
are consistent with the Agricultural 

Consultation on operational policy—
the NRCB continued to co-chair the 
Policy Advisory Group, which met 
on October 25, 2017 in Calgary. The 
NRCB consulted with the members 
on minimum distance separation 
for large scale country residential 

Operation Practices Act and NRCB 
operational policies, and can be 
considered in permit decisions. 
Meetings were also held with the 
Alberta Association of Municipal 
Districts and Counties (now the Rural 
Municipalities of Alberta).

Unauthorized construction 
communication and enforcement—
all livestock industry associations 
were provided with information 
about unauthorized construction to 
disseminate to their members through 
their newsletters. Information was 
also published in February 2017 in 
the NRCB newsletter Update. The 
newsletter was mailed directly to 
operators and posted on the NRCB 

developments, permit thresholds 
for liquid manure storage facilities, 
unauthorized construction, and dust 
control at feedlots. The members also 
discussed a framework for consistent 
interpretation of land use provisions in 
municipal development plans as they 
apply to permitting decisions. 

website. A fact sheet on unauthorized 
construction was available for 
operators at trade shows attended by 
NRCB personnel throughout the year. 
In addition, an acknowledgement letter 
sent to operators who have submitted 
a part 1 application was updated 
to emphasize that the Agricultural 
Operation Practices Act does not allow 
construction to commence until a 
permit has been issued. 

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-1814



Strategic priority: 
Use an environmental risk based approach for compliance activities and for reviewing permit applications for new 
or expanding operations.

Strategies Results achieved

Continue to support other provincial 
ministries and agencies studying the 
potential effects of manure 
collection and storage facilities on 
groundwater quality, and use the 
results for ongoing improvements to 
the NRCB’s risk screening model.

Continue to audit results from 
environmental risk screenings to 
maintain quality and ensure 
consistent risk determinations.

Implement a program to review 
water well monitoring conditions in 
AOPA permits.

Continue to use information about 
surface water conditions at confined 
feeding operations to inform policy 
for permitting and complaint 
response.

Manure impact study—the NRCB 
continued its involvement with 
Agriculture and Forestry’s five-year 
study on the impact on groundwater 
quality of manure storage and 
collection facilities and manure 
spreading. The study is scheduled 

Surface water—in 2017 NRCB 
inspectors completed 434 surface 
water site inspections at 230 confined 
feeding operations (some operations 
had multiple inspections completed). 
Surface water issues were identified 
at 23 of the operations. All of the 

to be completed in 2018. The NRCB 
continues to apply information gained 
from the study to its approach to 
assessing environmental risks at 
confined feeding operations, and to 
inform its operational policy. 

Environmental risk screenings—The 
environmental risk screening results 
were audited in accordance with NRCB 
procedures. The audit identified some 
discrepancies in scoring that have 

surface water issues identified were 
appropriately mitigated by operators 
to the satisfaction of the NRCB. 
Information from the inspections was 
used to upgrade several NRCB policies, 
including the Implementation Plan for 
Surface Water Data Collection.

since been corrected. Approval officers 
were given additional training on how 
to enter the scoring results in the 
database.

Water well monitoring conditions— 
a comprehensive program to review 
all water well monitoring conditions 
in operator permits was deferred in 
favour of the NRCB’s ongoing use 
of the water well screening tool for 
applications and compliance. The 

screening tool enables field staff to 
determine if a water well setback 
exemption from a manure storage 
facility is appropriate, or if water well 
monitoring conditions are necessary. 
Inspectors use the tool as required to 
respond to compliance issues.

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 15



Strategic priority: 
Support priority cross-government initiatives, ensuring consistency of NRCB-issued decisions with completed 
regional land use plans. In 2017-18, the NRCB will continue to participate in a cross-government initiative that is 
examining the potential for a streamlined regulatory process for biodigesters that use manure-based feedstock.

Strategy Results achieved

of understanding between both 
ministries and the NRCB. The NRCB 
currently regulates manure storage 
and spreading for two biodigester 
facilities and is consulting with 
both ministries to clarify regulatory 
requirements for other proposed 
manure-based biodigester facilities.

applications are reviewed to ensure 
they are consistent with the land use 
provisions in municipal development 
plans, as required by the Agricultural 
Operation Practices Act.

Consistency with completed regional 
land-use plans—all confined feeding 
operation permit applications are 
reviewed to determine if they are 
consistent with completed regional 
land use plans. In addition, all 

Other priority cross-government 
initiatives—in 2017-18 NRCB staff 
continued to contribute their expertise 
to numerous cross-ministry initiatives, 
including providing technical advice 
on an Alberta Water Council 
report to improve lake watershed 
management; monthly participation 

Joint regulatory process for 
biodigesters—in 2017-18, the NRCB 
participated in discussions with 
Alberta Environment and Parks and 
Agriculture and Forestry on improved 
coordination of the regulatory process 
for biodigesters that use manure-
based feedstock. These discussions 
built on the existing memorandum 

Continue to work with Environment 
and Parks, Agriculture and Forestry, 
and the biogas industry to identify 
opportunities to streamline the 
regulation of manure-based biogas 
facilities.

in Water for Life meetings; technical 
advice for the Surface Water Load 
Management Policy; member of the 
Bow River Phosphorus Management 
Plan committee; and participation in 
technical meetings for Agriculture and 
Forestry’s Phosphorus Strategy.

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-1816



iAdditional priorities:

Strategies Results achieved

Review and update permit 
application forms and guides to 
improve the completeness of 
submitted applications. Evaluate 
and as appropriate revise permit 
decision document templates.

Continue upgrades to the confined 
feeding operation database to 
improve the efficiency of data entry 
and retrieval. Use quarterly 
exception reports to monitor the 
management and entry of 
applications and compliance data.

Continue to work with the Technical 
Advisory Group to develop 
guidelines that support the delivery 
of AOPA.

Forms and guides—the part 1 and 
part 2 permit application forms were 
updated and simplified based on 
feedback from approval officers and 
applicants. The updated forms will 

Guidelines—the Technical Advisory 
Group completed a technical 
guideline listing, reviewed previously 
issued guidelines, and continued 

be easier for applicants to complete 
and will support more efficient 
processes and timelines. Guides to the 
application process were updated to 
reflect the new forms. 

developmental work on guidelines 
for geotechnical assessments, 
manure storage figures, and manure 
incorporation and manure injection. 

Database efficiencies—the NRCB 
continuously refines its confined 
feeding operation database to 
improve the efficiency of data entry 
and retrieval. In 2017-18, the steps 
required to enter a new confined 

feeding operation into the database 
were simplified and streamlined. 
The database was also modified 
to accommodate new statistical 
reporting.

Performance measures and results

Complaint resolution 2015/16 2016/172 2017/18

Percentage of complaint files resolved or requiring no  
further action, within 90 days

99% 99% 99%

Efficiency of permitting process 2015/16 2016/171 2017/18

Percentage of decisions issued within 65 working days  
from the date the application is determined to be complete

93% 92% 94%

1.	 Twelve of 143 decisions required more than 65 working days to process.
2.	 Three of 209 complaints exceeded 90 days.

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 17



Organizational Capacity
The NRCB takes pride in the exceptional quality of work 
that its staff delivers on an ongoing basis. The NRCB is 
committed to providing a work environment that supports 
this level of performance through internal and external 
training, continuous improvements to electronic systems, IT 
and records, and personal and wellness supports. 

In addition, the NRCB takes pride in its fiscal accountability. 
In 2017-18 it once again achieved a clean financial audit 
from the Auditor General (no issues were identified).

The following initiatives were undertaken or completed in 
2017-18:

•	 Information technology (IT)—a fourth tier backup 
was added and a restore from the third tier backup was 
successfully tested as part of the NRCB’s IT disaster 
recovery plan. In addition, the servers in Edmonton, 
Calgary, Lethbridge, and Red Deer were replaced as part 
of a major system upgrade. 

•	 Training—in addition to external professional 
development and training required for professional 
certification, staff were provided with internal training on 
biosecurity, use of roller compacted concrete for liners, 
and the use of drones in environmental assessments. 

•	 CFO database upgrades—the database was upgraded 
to better support how CFO information is collected, 
stored, and used for permitting and compliance activities. 
Changes improved data entry and reporting for the 
surface water program, leak detection monitoring and the 
environmental risk screening tool.

•	 Vehicles—field staff continue to be provided with NRCB-
leased vehicles to ensure they have safe transportation 
suitable for rural and farm roads, and for transporting 
biosecurity clothing and field equipment. In 2017-18, staff  
travelled 312,070 kilometres to respond to complaints 
and for permitting activities. 

•	 Records management—a draft records retention and 
disposition schedule was developed. The schedule will 
be completed in 2018-19 and submitted for review to the 
Records Management Committee.

•	 Personal and wellness supports—corporate services 
staff met face to face with all employees to review 
benefits and key policies. Wellness information is 
provided on the Intranet site for staff access. Private 
meetings with Clearpoint Retirement Solutions continue 
to be provided annually for all staff to assist with personal 
financial planning.

•	 Policies—policies on the personal use of social media 
and NRCB electronic systems were developed and will 
be finalized in 2018-19. A media policy for operations 
staff was updated. The NRCB’s code of conduct was 
substantially updated to reflect the recently enacted 
Conflicts of Interest Act. The draft code of conduct will be 
reviewed by the Office of the Ethics Commissioner in 
2018-19. 

•	 Scientific and technical support to the Board and 
operations—the NRCB’s Science and Technology staff 
provided support for approval officers and inspectors by 
assisting with environmental risk assessments at confined 
feeding operations and the interpretation of results. They 
also continued to contribute to Agriculture and Forestry’s 
manure impact study on groundwater and surface 
water, co-chaired the Technical Advisory Group, and 
participated in the review and development of technical 
guidelines. Science and Technology staff also provided 
support under the Natural Resources Conservation Board 
Act for the terms of reference and technical review of 
environmental impact assessments for the active Cougar 
Creek and Springbank applications and the pending 
Special Areas Water Supply Project. 

•	 Stakeholder education and awareness—the NRCB 
completed a request for proposal for a new website 
and selected a new vendor. The site is scheduled to be 
completed in 2018-19. Two issues of Update, the NRCB 
newsletter for confined feeding operators, were mailed to 
all operations listed on the NRCB database. Fact sheets 
on unauthorized construction, dust control, the permitting 
process, and manure application on frozen and snow 
covered land were made available on the NRCB website; 
and information on unauthorized construction was 
provided to industry associations for their members. An 
article on regulation of confined feeding operations under 

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-1818



the Agricultural Operation Practices Act was written for 
and published by the Progressive Dairyman. Staff attended 
numerous industry association meetings and trade shows 
to speak directly with operators, and met with municipal 
councils to inform them about the requirements of the 
Agricultural Operation Practices Act.

•	 Stakeholder satisfaction survey—the NRCB engaged 
Ipsos Reid to conduct a third-party survey of operators 
and complainants involved with the NRCB during the 
previous year, to gauge their satisfaction with permitting 
and compliance activities. The survey was conducted in 
February 2018. The report was finalized in April 2018. 
Feedback was positive and will be used to further improve 
how the NRCB communicates with stakeholders. The 
survey was previously conducted in 2009, 2012, and 
2015. The survey results are posted on the NRCB website.

•	 Office closure—preparations were made to close the 
Fairview office of the NRCB effective March 31, 2018, in 
light of the retirement of the one remaining staff member 

in that office. The Morinville office has supported the 
Peace region since 2010. Calls from operators and 
complainants are automatically connected to the office 
by the NRCB’s call centre. In 2017-18, activity in the 
Peace region totalled three part 2 permit applications, 
and a total of four complaints, including two self-reports 
regarding over-flowing lagoons on separate confined 
feeding operations owned by the same company.

Staff changes
Due to retirements and departures, a number of new staff 
were hired in 2017-18 to fill existing positions:

•	 Adria Snowdon, Approval Officer, Lethbridge office
•	 David Smejkal, Inspector, Red Deer office 
•	 Julie Wright, Approval Officer, Morinville office 
•	 Michele Annich, Board Member, Edmonton office
•	 Page Stuart, Board Member, Edmonton office
•	 Stephanie Gaetz, Field Office Administrator,  

Lethbridge office

Performance measures and results

Statement of Disclosures under the Public Interest (Whistleblower Protection) Act 

Policy and procedures for disclosures under the Public Interest (Whistleblower Protection) Act (PIDA), and an accompanying 
form, are posted for staff access on the NRCB’s internal intranet site.

No disclosures were initiated in 2017-18. 

1.	 2016/17 result is based on the staff survey question: “Overall, I am satisfied with my work as an employee of the NRCB.” The survey is run on 
alternate years. It was not run in 2015-16 or 2017-18. Board members and Board staff do not participate in the survey.

2.	 Participation in external training. Includes Board members and Board staff.

NRCB employee satisfaction1 2015/16 2016/171 2017/18

Percentage of staff who express  
satisfaction on survey results Not available 83% Not available

NRCB employees have appropriate training2 2015/16 2016/171 2017/18

Percentage of staff who participate  
in training programs 73% 79% 63%

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 19



Where We Were

Municipalities
•	 Municipal District of Provost, Provost, April 12, 2017
•	 Kneehill Country, Threehills, May 17, 2017
•	 Parkland County, Stony Plain, June 5, 2017
•	 Sturgeon County, Morinville, July 26, 2017
•	 Vermilion County, Vermilion, August 4, 2017
•	 Ponoka County, Ponoka, August 17, 2017

Communicating with stakeholders is a priority for the Natural Resources Conservation Board. In 2017-18, staff and Board 
members participated in the following meetings, trade shows, and conferences to provide information about its programs, 
policies, and processes. Regularly scheduled, ongoing meetings with Agriculture and Forestry were also held on operational 
policy and technical topics. 

•	 Paint Earth County, Castor, August 15, 2017
•	 Lacombe County, Lacombe, September 1, 2017
•	 Alberta Association of Rural Municipalities and Counties 

(now the Rural Municipalities Association),  
September 25, 2017

•	 Town of Pincher Creek, Pincher Creek, October 13, 2017
•	 Vulcan County, Vulcan, October 19, 2017
•	 Ponoka County, Ponoka, October 25, 2017

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-1820



Other Government
•	 Parkland Airshed Management Zone Board Meetings, 

Red Deer, January 25, April 26, May 17, September 20, 
and November 22, 2017

•	 WaterTech, Banff, April 3-5, 2017 (presentation)
•	 Alberta Health Services, Red Deer, August 14, 2017
•	 Parkland Airshed Management Zone Issues Response 

Group, Sundre, August 24, 2017
•	 University of Calgary Environmental Science 501, Calgary, 

September 6, 2017 (presentation)
•	 Policy Advisory Group, Calgary, October 25, 2017
•	 Springbank EIA overview meeting, Alberta Environment 

and Parks and Alberta Transportation, Edmonton, 
November 7, 2017 

•	 Springbank NRCB process meeting, Alberta 
Transportation, Edmonton, January 1, 2018

•	 University of  Calgary Environmental Science 502, 
Calgary, January 11, 2018 (presentation) 

•	 Alberta Health Services and Alberta Environment and 
Parks, Lethbridge, January 12, 2018 (presentation)

•	 Special Areas Water Supply Project (overview 
presentation), Edmonton, January 24, 2018

•	 Alberta Water Council bi-monthly meetings, 2017-18
•	 Bow River Phosphorous Management Plan meeting,  

May 4, 2017
•	 Cross Ministry Water for Life monthly meetings, 2017-18
•	 Watershed Policy and Advisory Councils, bi-monthly  

board and committee meetings, 2017-18

Industry Meetings & Events
•	 Intensive Livestock Working Group, Edmonton, 

September 11, 2017
•	 Alberta Milk Regional Meeting, Lethbridge, April 4, 2017
•	 Alberta Milk Regional Meeting , Red Deer, April 5, 2017
•	 Alberta Milk Regional Meeting, Barrhead, April 6, 2017
•	 Alberta Milk Regional Meeting, Leduc, April 7, 2017
•	 Aggie Days (trade show booth), Lethbridge,  

April 25-26, 2017
•	 Pork Congress (trade show booth), Red Deer, 

June 14-15, 2017
•	 Intensive Livestock Working Group, Edmonton, 

September 11, 2017
•	 Alberta Cattle Feeders’ board meeting, Calgary,  

October 24, 2017,
•	 Alberta Milk Central Alberta Fall Meeting, Red Deer, 

October 16, 2017
•	 Alberta Milk Regional Meeting, Leduc, October 27, 2017
•	 Agri-Trade (trade show booth), Red Deer,  

November 9-10, 2017
•	 Intensive Livestock Working Group, Edmonton,  

March 29, 2018

Natural Resources Conservation Board      Annual Report 2017-18 21



   

Calgary office
19th Floor, Centennial Place 
250 - 5 Street SW
Calgary AB T2P 0R4
Tel: 403-297-8269  
Fax: 403-662-3994

Edmonton office
4th Floor, Sterling Place 
9940 - 106 Street 
Edmonton AB T5K 2N2
Tel: 780-422-1977 
Fax: 780-427-0607

Lethbridge office
Agriculture Centre
100, 5401 - 1 Avenue S 
Lethbridge AB T1J 4V6
Tel: 403-381-5166 
Fax: 403-381-5806

Morinville office
201 Provincial Building 
10008 - 107 Street 
Morinville AB T8R 1L3
Tel: 780-939-1212 
Fax: 780-939-3194

Red Deer office
303 Provincial Building 
4920 - 51 Street
Red Deer AB T4N 6K8
Tel: 403-340-5241 
Fax: 403-340-5599

Copies of the Agricultural Operation 
Practices Act and the Natural Resources 
Conservation Board Act can be 
obtained from the Queen’s Printer  
at www.qp.gov.ab.ca or through  
the NRCB website.

For additional copies of this 
publication, contact the Edmonton 
office of the NRCB at 780-422-1977 
or email info@nrcb.ca. Dial 310-0000 
to be connected toll free to any 
NRCB office.

Email: info@nrcb.ca 
Response line: 1-866-383-6722 
Web address: www.nrcb.ca

Contact Information

Copyright 2018

ISBN 978-1-4601-4042-0 (Print) 
ISBN 978-1-4601-4043-7 (PDF)
ISSN 2369-4483 (Print) 
ISSN 2369-4491 (Online)

The NRCB gratefully acknowledges the permission of Peter Woloshyn to use the photographs 
on the front, back, and inside covers (all images), and the photographs on pages 4, 7, 9, 11 
(thistles), 12, 13 (butterfly), 15, 16, 17, and 20.



~ !l • •a I • a • !~ 

'G Ai.iliLiiil\ 
~ A BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY ENERGY COMPANY 

September 5, 2018 

911L Transmission Line Removal 
Project Update 

2611 3rd Ave SE, Calgary, Alberta, T2A 7W7 www.altalink.ca 

RECEIVED 
SEP 1 2 2018 

M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

Thank you for your ongoing participation in the 911L Transmission Line Removal project . We would like to 
provide some information in addit ion to the project details that you received in July 2018. 

Please note, that our July 2018 Project Update did not include the AUC brochure "Public involvement in a 
proposed utility development''. This brochure has been included with th is letter. We have also included 
additional information about the transmission line salvage process which is also enclosed . 

The July 2018 Project Update included a map of the project area . This map contained a spe lling error in the 
legend, identifying a "Proposed Alternation to Existing Substation", instead of " Proposed Alteration to Existing 
Substation". This is the only update to the map that has been included with this letter. 

We currently anticipate filing our fac ilities appl ication w ith the AUC in fall 2018. Once the applicat ion is filed, 

we will notify you. 

Contact us 

Please contact Alta link at 1-877-267-1453 or at stakeholderrelations@altalink.ca if you have any questions or 
concerns regarding this project . More information about this project can be found online 

at http://www.altalink.ca/projects/. 

Sincerely, 

Dave Lee 
Manager, Stakeholder Engagement 

J, 
~ ol)~ 

0RP IIA"f I,; T1.,Pf~ , H 

l"r r,.-111 r d ht V. ltrr • ••"r 

Su winableElectricityApprolled" 
Canadian Electricity Association 







September 7, 2018 

2611 3rd AVE SE, CALGARY, ALBERTA, T2A 7W7 

WWW .ALTALINK.CA 

Riverview Wind Power Facility Interconnection 
Notice of application filing 

Thank you for your ongoing participation in the Riverview Wind Power Facility 
Interconnection. We submitted an amendment to our application for the project with the 
Alberta Utilities Commission (AUC) on August 27, 2018. 

Next steps 

The AUC will review the application and can approve, approve with conditions or deny the 
project. The AUC may also host a hearing regarding the project. To learn more about the AUC 
process and how you can become involved please visit www.auc.ab.ca. 

We will notify you of the AU C's decision regarding the project. If the project is approved, you 
may see or hear the following during the construction process: 

• noise and construction crews 
• work at the existing Castle Rock Ridge Substation 

The application 

The application can be viewed on the AUC's website at www.auc.ab.ca. 

To access the application, click on the 'eFiling System Login' button on the left side of the 
page and log in to your eFiling account. If you do not have an account, select 'New Account' 
and follow the steps onscreen. Please note any questions or concerns regarding account 
creation and management should be directed towards the AUC at info@auc.ab.ca . 

Once your account has been created and you have successfully logged in, enter 2402 into the 
'Go to ... ' search bar on the left side of the page to locate the application. Alternatively, you 
can navigate to 'Find', click 'Proceedings' and enter "Riverview" into the 'Description' search 
bar. 

If you have any issues accessing the application, please contact us at the details below and we 
will mail a copy of the application to you. 

~ SustamobleBectricilyApproved· S Canadian Electrici ty Association 



~ :! ...... ··•!!~ ~ ALiiii.ifii\ 
~ A6f.RK5HI.R( tiAJttAWAYf,NfMiYCOMPANY 

Project background 

2611 3rd AVE SE, CALGARY, ALBERTA, T2A 7W7 

WWW.ALTALIN K.CA 

Riverview Limited Partnership's, by its general partner Enel Alberta Wind Inc., proposed 
Riverview Wind Power Plant was selected for development in round one of the Renewable 
Electricity Program (REP) and is moving forward . As a result, Altalink's Riverview Wind Power 
Interconnection, which will connect the wind project to the Alberta transmission system, is also 
moving ahead. More information about the REP can be found at www.aeso.ca .. The proposed 
Riverview Wind Power Facility Interconnection includes adding one 240 kilovolt {kV) circuit 
breaker and associated equipment to the existing Castle Rock Ridge Substation. 

Contact us 

We are available to address any questions or concerns you may have. Please contact us at 
stakeholderrelations@altalink.ca or 1-877-267-1453. Further information about this project 
and maps are available at http://www.altalink.ca/projects/view/143/riverview-wind­
power-facility-i nterconnection. 

Sincerely, 

Dave Lee 
Manager, Stakeholder Engagement 

/m. Sustam11hleElectrlcltyApproved · 
~ Canadian Electricily Association 



✓ 

Calgary office Edmonton offi ce 
1400, 600 Third Avenue S.W. 
Calgary, Alberta 

Tenth Floor, 10055 106 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta 

T2P 0G5 

www.auc.ab.ca 

Notice of application 
Castle Rock Ridge Phase II 

T5J 2Y2 

RECEIVED 
SEP 1 0 2018 

M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

Enel Alberta Wind Inc. has filed an application for a wind 
power plant in the Pincher Creek area 
Proceeding 23753 
Application 23753-A00l 

The Alberta Utiliti es Comm iss ion (AUC), the independent utiliti es regulator, will be considering 
the power plant development application in Proceeding 23 75 3. If you fee l you may be affected 
by thi s application you can prov ide input to the AUC to rev iew before it makes its decision. 

Written submissions are due October 4, 2018. 

Enel Alberta Wind Inc. has applied to amend its approval to construct and operate a power plant 
des ignated as Castle Rock Ridge Wind Power Project. Phase I of the project has already been 
constructed. Phase II was originall y approved to consist of 14 wind turb ines, each rated at 2.3 1 
megawatts. Enel is now propos ing that Phase 11 consist of seven wind turbines, each rated at 4.2 
megawatts. The application has been tiled under the Hydro and Electric Energy Act. The seven 
wind turbines are proposed to be located within the Municipal District of Pincher Creek within 
Sections 14 and 15, Township 7, Range 30, west of the Fourth Meridian. 

Ori~inal application Amended application 
Number of turbines 14 7 
Turbine capacity 2.31 megawatts 4.2 megawatts 
Total capac ity 32.34 megawatts 29.4 megawatts 
Height of turbines 64 metres 82 metres 

Enel Alberta Wind Inc. has also applied for Ri verview Wind Power Plant which will be 
considered along with its interconnection in Proceeding 2402. 

Additional information about the application 
Bas ic info rmation about the Castle Rock Ridge Phase 11 Project can be fo und on the A UC 
website under "Projects" - Featured proj ect summari es . The application and any assoc iated 
documents are publicly ava il able and can be accessed fro m the eF iling System on the AUC 
website \\ \\ ,, .auc.ab.ca. 



- 2 -

Alternati vely, fo r more info rmati on about what is being applied for , or for a copy of the 
application, please contact: 

Enel A lberta Wind Inc., attention Victor Enge l 
Phone: 603-496-325 1 
Ema il : \ ictor.cngel c1 northamerica.encl.it 

Participant information session 
The AUC w ill be holding an info rmation sess ion to prov ide information about how yo u may 
become in vo lved in this proceeding and the fund ing which may be ava il able to you to support 
your posi tion, whi ch includes costs fo r legal representati on and expert w itnesses . The proj ect and 
its merits will not be di scussed at this sess ion. 

Ramada by Wyndham Pincher Creek 
11 32 Table Mountain St. , Pincher Creek, Albe11a 
Thursday, September 27, 20 18 at 6:3 0 p.m. 

If you cannot attend the info rmation sess ion but want to learn more about the rev iew process 
please contact us or v isit our website and rev iew the in formation under " Have your say" and 
under " Rev iew process." 

Submissions 
If you w ish to participate in thi s proceeding, pl ease vis it our website and log in to the eF iling 
System, go to Proceedin g 23 753 , and register to part ic ipate under the " Registered parties" tab. 
Alternat ive ly, pl ease contact us at 3 10-4AUC or info li auc.ab.ca fo r more info rmation or 
assistance w ith fi li ng your submission. The lead appli cation offi cer, T revor Ri chards, can a lso be 
contacted at tre\or.richards a auc .ab.ca o r 403 -592-4469. 

The AUC may make its decision without further noti ce or process if no written submiss ions are 
rece ived. 

Submiss ions must include yo ur name, address, phone num ber, lega l land location, description of 
your land in re lati on to th e proposed deve lopment and a descripti on of your interest in the land, 
your bus iness, or yo ur acti vities which may be affected by the proposed project. Please also 
briefl y describe the issues you would li ke the AUC to consider when making its dec ision. 

Privacy 
To support an open and transparent process, info rmation you send to the AUC will be public ly 
ava ilable th rough the AU C ' s eF iling System. If there is confidenti a l info rmati on you would li ke 
to fil e, a request must be made in advance of filin g yo ur submiss ion. 

Iss ued on September 4, 20 18. 

A lberta Utilit ies Commission 
Douglas A . Larder, QC, Genera l Co unse l 



✓ 

- 3 -

R.30 W.4M . 

• 
• • 

T.7 

• • 
• • 

ci TOWNSHIP RD. 72 
0::: 
w 
(9 
z 
c2 

- WIND PROJECT BOUNDARY 
• WIND TURBINE 

TOWNSHIP RD. 71 

Hamlet of 
Pincher Creek 
Station 

N.T.S. 



.... 

www.auc.ab.ca 

Notice of application 

Calgary office 
1400, 600 Third Avenue S.W. 
Calgary, Alberta 
T2P OGS 

Riverview Wind Power Plant and 
Interconnection 

Edmonton office 
Tenth Floor, 10055106 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta 
TSJ 2Y2 

RECEIVED 
SEP 1 0 2018 

M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

Enel Alberta Wind Inc., Altalink Management Ltd. and the 
Alberta Electric System Operator have filed applications for 
construction, operation and interconnection of a wind 
power plant in the Pincher Creek area 

Proceeding 2402 
Applications 1609252-1 , 1609252-2, 1609661-1 and 1609664-1 

The Alberta Uti lities Commission (AUC), the independent utilities regulator, will be considering 
the electric transmission and power plant deve lopment applications in Proceeding 2402. If you 
feel you may be affected by these app li cations you can provide input to the AUC to review 
before it makes its decis ion. 

Written submissions are due October 4, 2018. 

Enel Alberta Wind Inc. has applied to construct and operate the Riverview Wind Power Plant 
under the Hydro and Electric Energy Act. Ene l previously applied for the project but has 
amended its application and is now proposing that the project consist of 28 w ind turbines, each 
rated at 4.2 megawatts, an underground collector system and a co ll ector substation designated as 
the Riverview Project Collector Substation. The power plant wou ld have a total generat ing 
capability of 117.6 megawatts. The 28 wind turbines are proposed to be located within the 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek within Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 18, Township 7, Range 29 , 
west of the Fourth Meridian . 

The Riverview Project Co llector Substation is proposed to be located in the southeast quarter of 
Section 14, Township 7, Range 30, west of the Fourth Meridian. It will share a common fence 
with the existing Castle Rock 205S Substation, as well as the Castle Rock Ridge Wind Power 
Plant Project Co llector Substation. 

The Alberta Electric System Operator has app lied for approval of the need to connect the 
Riverview Wind Power Plant to the Alberta ln terconnected Electric System. 



- 2 -

AltaLink Management Ltd. has applied to construct the facilities to meet the need identified by 
the Alberta Electric System Operator by adding one 240-kilovolt circuit breaker to the Castle 
Rock Ridge 205S Substation. The Castle Rock Ridge 205S Substation is located in the southeast 
quarter of Section 14, Township 7, Range 30, west of the Fourth Meridian. The applications have 
been filed under the Electric Utilities Act and Hydro and Electric Energy Act. 

Additional information about the applications 
Basic information about the Riverview Wind Power Plant can be found on the AUC website 
under "Projects" - Featured project summaries. The applications and any associated documents 
are publicly available and can be accessed from the eFiling System on the AUC website 
www.auc.ab.ca. Alternatively, for more information about what is being applied for, or for a 
copy of the applications, please contact: 

Enel Alberta Wind Inc. 
Victor Engel 
Phone: 603-496-3251 
Emai I: victor.engel@northamerica.enel.it 

Alberta Electric System Operator 
Brenda Hill 
Phone: 403-539-2850 
Emai I: need .appl ications@aeso.ca 

Participant information session 

AltaLink Management Ltd . 
Michelle Lemieux 
Phone:403-267-5909 
Email: projects@altalink.ca 

The AUC will be holding an information sess ion to provide information about how you may 
become invo lved in this proceeding and the funding which may be available to you to support 
your position, which includes costs for legal representation and expert witnesses. The project and 
its merits w ill not be discussed at this sess ion : 

Ramada by Wyndham Pincher Creek 
11 32 Table Mountain St., Pincher Creek, Alberta 
Thursday, September 27, 20 18 at 6:30 p.m . 

If you cannot attend the information session , but want to learn more about the review process 
please contact us or visit our website and review the information under " Have your say" and 
under " Review process". 

Submissions 
If you wish to participate in this proceeding, please visit our website and log in to the eFiling 
System, go to Proceeding 2402, and regi ster to participate under the "Registered parties" tab. 
Alternatively, please contact us at 780-427-4903 or info@auc.ab.ca for more information or 
assistance with filing your submission. The lead application officer, Trevor Richards, can also be 
contacted at trevor.richards@auc.ab.ca or 403-592-4469. 
The AUC may make its decision without further notice or process if no written submissions are 
received . 

... 



( 

- 3 -

Submissions must include your name, address, phone number, legal land location, description of 
your land in relation to the proposed development and a description of your interest in the land, 
your business, or your activities which may be affected by the proposed project. Please also 
briefly describe the issues you would like the AUC to consider when making its decision. 

Privacy 
To support an open and transparent process, information you send to the AUC will be publicly 
available through the AUC 's eFiling System. If there is confidential information you would like 
to file , a request must be made in advance of filing your submission. 

Issued on September 5, 2018. 

Alberta Utilities Commission 
Douglas A. Larder, QC, General Counsel 



- 4 -

R.30 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

R.29W.4M . 

• 
• 

• 
• 

T.7 

• • 
• • • • • 

• • • 
• • • 

• 

- PROJECTBOUNDARY 
• PROPOSED TURBINE 

T.6 

• PROPOSED SUBSTATION 
N.T.S. 



CASTLE MOUNTAIN RESORT INC. 
NOTICE OF SHAREHOLDERS MEETING 

RECEIVED 
SEP - 6 2018 

TAKE NOTICE THAT the annual meeting of the Shareholders will be heldl','1.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

Place: 
Date: 
Time: 

Day Lodge at Castle Mountain Resort Inc. 
Saturday, September 29, 2018 
2:30 p.m. (shareholder registration) 
3:00 p.m. (meeting start time) 

Business to be conducted at the meeting shall include: 

1 . Approval of Agenda 

2. Approval of Scrutineer Report 

3. Adoption of Minutes - AGM - September 30, 2017 

4. Financial Report 

5. Auditor's Report 

6. Approval of Financial Statements 

7. Appointment of Auditors 

8. Nomination of Directors from the Floor 

9. Other Matters - None 

10. Election of Directors 

11. Adjournment of the Annual General Meeting 

12. Post Meeting Information Session 
a. President's Remarks 
b. Manager's Report 
c. Questions Submitted 

Any Shareholder wishing to add an item to the Agenda is requested to provide written notice 
no later than September 15, 2018, of such item to: 

Castle Mountain Resort Inc. 
c/o 807, 400 - 4th Avenue South 
Lethbridge, Alberta T1 J 4E1 
Fax: (403) 329-0395 



Proxies - Shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting are encouraged to 
provide a signed proxy to a nominee who will attend the meeting. This will help to 
ensure a quorum for the transaction of business. 

CASTLE MOUNTAIN RESORT INC 
SHAREHOLDER PROXY 

I appoint ____________ as my proxy to act on my behalf as a 
shareholder of Castle Mountain Resort Inc. for the purpose of business arising at the 
shareholder's meeting on September 29, 2018. 

Signature 

Name of Shareholder 



ITEM 1 -

INFORMATION CIRCULAR 

REVOCABILITY OF PROXY 

1. The person or company giving a Proxy has the power to revoke it. 

2. Revocation of a Proxy must be in writing to be delivered to the registered office of the 
Corporation no later than 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

3. Proxies are to be presented at the meeting. Electronically reproduced documents 
without an original signature may be rejected at the discretion of the scrutineers. 

ITEM 2 - PERSONS OR COMPANIES MAKING THE SOLICITATION 

1. This meeting has been called on behalf of the management of Castle Mountain 
Resort Inc. 

2. No Director has informed management in writing that he/she intends to oppose any 
action intended to be taken by the management. 

3. This solicitation is to be made directly at a meeting of the Shareholders in 
attendance on September 29, 2018, at 3:30 p.m. - Daylodge - Castle Mountain 
Resort. 

ITEM 3 -

1. None. 

ITEM 4-

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS AND COMPANIES IN MATTERS TO 
BE ACTED UPON 

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING 
SECURITIES 

1. There is one class of Common Voting Shares of the Corporation which have been 
issued of which there are 56,370 Shares outstanding as of July 5, 2018. Each Share 
is entitled to one vote. 

2. Additional Preferred Shares have been issued and are outstanding, however, these 
are Non Voting Shares. 

3. The record date for which security holders shall be entitled to vote shall be 
September 5, 2018. 



ITEM 5 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

There are 5 positions open for election to the board of Directors. 

The corporate bylaws provide that Directors are elected for a 2 year term. 4 of the 9 
Director's positions are up for election in 2018. The 4 Directors who were elected for a 2 
year term in 2017 and accordingly will continue to sit as Directors of the Corporation until 
the next Annual General Meeting in 2019 are: 

ROD LANIER 
ADAM JUDD 
CHERYLE DE LEEUW 
IAN MILLER 

The following individuals have agreed to allow their names to stand for election as 
Directors: 

NAME POSITION HELD PRINCIPAL TERM OF SECURITIES 
OCCUPATION(S) PREVIOUS SERVICE HELD OR 

CONTROLLED 

Brian McGurk Secretary/Director/Chairman Executive 10 years 270 common 

Kevin Wright Director Engineer 6 years 340 common 

Gayle Weeks Treasurer/Director Retired Accountant 2 years 270 common 

Karen Harker Director Education Administrator 2 years 2090 common 

George Koch Businessman 0 years 100 common 

Steve Mundell Businessman 0 years 85 common 

David Carmichael Engineer 0 years 85 common 

Further nominations for directors will be accepted prior to the meeting (by written notice 
sent to 807 Leth bridge Centre Tower, 400 4th Avenue South , Lethbridge, Alberta, T1 J 
4E1) or from the floor at the annual meeting. 

The 5 positions will be for a term of 2 years. 

ITEM 6 - EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

No compensation has been paid or is contemplated to be paid to the Directors. 

ITEM 7 - INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS 

No indebtedness requiring disclosure. 



ITEM 8 - INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS 

The following Directors are leaseholders or have a material interest in a lease at the 
Resort: 

Brian McGurk 
Kevin Wright 
Rod Lanier 
Cheryl Deleeuw 
Adam Judd 
Ian Miller 
Gayle Weeks 
Karen Harker 

ITEM 9 - APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR 

The current auditor of the corporation is: 

Auditor: 
Appointed: 

Avail CPA (formerly Young Parkyn McNab Chartered Accountants) 
1996 

The appointment of an auditor for the next financial year end will be determined by the 
direction of the Shareholders at the meeting. 

ITEM 10 - NOTICES OF MOTION 

None at this time. Any shareholder wishing to bring a matter forward must do so in writing no later 
than September 15, 2018, as per the Notice of Shareholders meeting. 

ITEM 11 - PARTICULARS OF MATTERS TO BE ACTED ON 

The meeting Agenda is enclosed, on page 1 of this Notice. 

No action is ~ontemplated to ·be taken at the meeting on any item other than those 
,previously described. 



ITEM 12 - CERTIFICATE 

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a 
material fact that is required to. be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not 
misleading in the light of the circumstances in which it was made. 

13-IW 
Brad Brush 
General Manager 



CASTLE MOUNTAIN RESORT INC. 
SUMMARY BALANCE SHEET 

As at April 30, 2018 

2018 2017 

ASSETS 

Current assets $ 1,793,579 $ 1,067,422 
Ca~ital assets 11 ,000,382 10,842,152 

Total assets $ 12,793,961 $ 11,909,574 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Current liabilities $ 1,484,975 $ 1,119,072 
Callable debt 1,102,957 1 072,872 

2 587,932 2,191,944 

Capital lease obligation 1,428 
Deferred revenue 4,228,988 4,084,539 
Preferred shares 469,900 485,000 
Future income taxes 396,823 339,879 

5,095,711 4,910,846 

Total liabilities 7,683,643 7,102,790 

Shareholders' equity 
Common shares 3,089,380 3,089,380 
Retained earnings 2,020!938 1,717,404 

Total shareholders' egui!l: 5! 110,318 4,806!784 
Total liabilities and shareholders' eguitl'. $ 12,793,961 $ 11,909,574 

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To the Board of Directors of Castle Mountain Resort Inc. 

The accompanying summary financial statements, which comprise the summary balance sheet as at April 30, 
2018, the summary statements of income and retained earnings and cash flows for the year then ended are derived 
from the audited financial statements of Castle Mountain Resort Inc. for the year ended April 30, 2018. We 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those financial statements in our report dated August 24, 2018. 

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by Canadian accounting standards for 
private enterprises. Reading the summary financial statements, therefore, is not a substitute for reading the audited 
financial statements of Castle Mountain Resort Inc .. 

Management's Responsibility for the Summary Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation of a summary of the audited financial statements in accordance with 
the criteria as described in note 1. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the summary financial statements based on our procedures, which 
were conducted in accordance with Canadian Auditing Standard (CAS) 810, "Engagements to Report on Summary 
Financial Statements." 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements of Castle Mountain 
Resort Inc. for the year ended April 30, 2018 are a fair summary of those financial statements, in accordance with 
the criteria described in note 1. 

Lethbridge, Alberta 
August 24, 2018 

Ava i I LLP Chartered Prof1tssionol Accountants 

~~JJ~ 
Chartered Professional Accountants 



CASTLE MOUNTAIN RESORT INC. 
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF INCOME 

For the year ended April 30, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

2018 2017 
Revenue 

Day lift tickets $ 2,689,779 $ 2,147,136 
Food services 1,353,239 1,108,184 
Lot leases and maintenance 754,387 738,134 
Season passes 679,290 546,524 
Other 385,688 379,884 
Ski school and rental shoe 386,534 294,849 

6,248,917 5,214,711 

Expenses 
Wages and benefits 2,758,820 2,463,765 
Other 1,188,941 1,022,232 
Food services 530,185 497,639 
Repairs and maintenance 452,011 374,333 
Advertising and promotion 313,615 242,021 
Interest on callable debt 64,024 55,035 
Amortization 541,455 418,107 

5,849,051 5,073,132 

Income from oeeratlons 399,866 141 ,579 

Other expenses (income) 
Dividends 74,929 5,760 
2011 fuel spill remediation 1,049 
{Gain} loss on diseosal of caeital assets {35,541} 46,686 

39,388 53,495 

Income before income taxes 360,478 88,084 

Income taxes 
Future income taxes 56,944 16,733 

Net income 303,534 71 ,351 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 1,717,404 1,646,053 

Retained earnlngs1 end of ~ear $ 2,020,938 $ 1,717,404 

Ava i I LLP Chartered Professional Accountants 



CASTLE MOUNTAIN RESORT INC. 
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the year ended April 30, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

2018 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net income $ 303,534 $ 71 ,351 
Adjustment for items which do not affect cash 

Amortization 541,455 418,107 
Future income taxes 56,944 16,733 
(Gain} loss on diseosal of caeital assets (35,541} 46,686 

866,392 552,877 
Changes in non-cash working caeital items 290,487 (31 ,038} 

1,156,879 521 ,839 

Cash flows from Investing activities 
Purchase of capital assets (720,642) (139,371) 
Proceeds on diseosal of caeital assets 56,500 

(664,142) (139,371} 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds of debt 443,500 
Repayment of debt (404,259) (155,382) 
Redemption of preferred shares (15,100) (18,000) 
Deferred revenue 158,957 (201 ,868) 

183,098 (375,250) 

Net Increase In cash and cash equlvalents 675,835 7,218 

Cash and cash eguivalents1 beginning of ~ear 615,996 608,778 

Cash and cash egulvalents1 end of ~ear $ 1,291,831 $ 615,996 

1. Summary financial statements 

Management prepared these summary financial statements using the following criteria: 
(a) the summary financial statements include a statement for each statement included in the audited 
financial statements; 
(b) information in the summary financial statements agrees with the related information in the completed 
set of audited financial statements; 
(c) major subtotals, tofals and comparative information from the audited financial statements are included; 
and 
(d) the summary financial statements contain the information from the audited financial statements dealing 
with matters having a pervasive or otherwise significant effect on the summary financial statements. 

The summary financial statements are derived from the audited financial statements, prepared in accordance with 
Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, as at April 30, 2018 and for the year then ended. 

The audited financial statements of the company are avai lable on request by contacting the administration office. 

Ava i I LLP Chart.red ProfHsionol Accountants 



MEETING MINUTES 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS 

OF CASTLE MOUNTAIN RESORT INC. 
HELD ON THE 30TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2017 

CALLED TO ORDER 2: 10PM 

Formal part of agenda: 

Welcome to AGM for CMR Inc. 

Chairman: My name is Brian McGurk. I am The Chairman of the Board of Castle Mountain 

Resort and I will be chairing this meeting . The meeting will be in two parts, the 

formal business of the meeting followed by an information report to the 

shareholders by management and the board and questions. I would like to 

introduce the current members of the Board that are present Ian Miller Vice 

Chair, Gayle Weeks Treasurer; Directors, Dennis Miller, Cheryl de 

Leeuw, Kevin Wright, Adam Judd, Karen Harker, and Rod Lanier. I 

would also like to Introduce Darren Adamson, CA representing the 

corporation's auditor Avail CPA. 

1. Shareholder Registration and Voting 

Chairman: "I would like to remind all present that those persons who are 

common shareholders or proxy holders should have registered with the 

Scrutineer. 

Please be advised that pursuant to the Company's by-laws only those 

persons who are common shareholders or are validly appointed proxy 

holders, who have registered with the Scrutineer, are entitled to be at the 

meeting, or entitled to ask questions and vote at the meeting. With the 

consent of the meeting and at the invitation of the Board, I would 

propose admitting all the guests who are present. Welcome to all. In 

terms of voting, we will be conducting the election of director~ using the 



- 2 -

ballots distributed when you registered with the Scrutineer. Any 

individuals nominated from the floor will need to be added to your ballots 

prior to voting.,_ 

2. Formalities 

Chairman: 

3. Agenda 

4. 

Chairman: 

"The annual meeting of Castle Mountain Resort Inc. [CMR] will 

now come to order pursuant to the Corporation's By-Laws, I will act as 

Chairman of this meeting and with your approval I shall ask Cheryl De 

Leeuw to act as secretary of the meeting. Nancy Brush and Roger and 

Dixie McAdam of our office to act as Scrutinizers of the meeting". 

The agenda for this meeting was circulated with the 

meeting notice; copies of the agendas are available at the door. This was 

done to expedite the business portion of the meeting. 

For record keeping purposes can you please state your first and last 

name if you are making or seconding a motion. May I have a 

motion to adopt the Agenda? 

Moved - Fraser Stewart 

Second - Goldie Weeks 

Vote - Motion carried 

Notice & Scrutineer's Report 

"The Notice calling this meeting was mailed or e-mailed to 

common shareholders included an agenda, a copy of last year's minutes, 

an abbreviated financial report, the resolution and form of proxy, in 

accordance with the requirements of the Corporation's By-Laws and the 

Business Corporations Act of Alberta. 



- 3 -

"Pursuant to the By-Laws of the Corporation, shareholders present in 

person or represented by proxy representing 35% of the outstanding 

Common Shares of the Corporation constitutes a quorum for the 

transaction of business at this Annual Meeting of shareholders of Castle 

Mountain Resort Inc. I have been advised that a quorum is present. The 

Scrutineer's report shows that there are at least 21,160 common shares 

present in person or by proxy representing a total greater than 19,700 

common shares or 35% of the 56,285 issued and outstanding common 

shares of the Corporation." 

May I have a motion to adopt Scrutineer's, report: 

Moved - Ian Miller 

Second - Doug Laughead 

Vote - Motion carried 

"The notice of the meeting having been given as required by the By-Laws 

of the Corporation and by the Business Corporation Act and a quorum 

being present, I declare this Annual Meeting of the shareholders of Castle 

Mountain Resort Inc. to be properly called and duly constituted for the 

transaction of business that may properly be brought before it in 

accordance with the notice of meeting. 

"The minutes of the Corporation's last shareholders meeting are available 

for inspection, they were in the package which was mailed or e-mailed to 

all shareholders. I now ask for a motion to dispense with the reading of 

the minutes of the last shareholders meeting and that the minutes be 

taken as read and adopted." 

May I have a motion to adopt minutes? 

Chairman: 

Moved - Michele Fraser 

Second - Glenn Armstrong 

Vote - Motion carried 

Is there any business arising from those minutes? No business arising. 



- 4 -

5. Financial Statements 

Chairman : The first item of business is the matter of the financial statements of the 

Corporation for the year ended April 30, 2017 and the report of the 

auditors thereon. The abbreviated audited financial statements of the 

Corporation for the year ended April 30, 2017 were in the package that 

was mailed or e-mailed to all shareholders. We will dispense with the 

reading of those financial statements but we will review the highlights. If 

anyone present did not receive a copy or would like a copy, extra copies 

are available. Anyone with a question with respect of the financial 

statements may ask it immediately following the end of the more formal 

portion of this meeting. 

Financial Report: - Darren Adamson from Avail CPA reviewed the financial 

statements 

6. Auditors Report 

Chairman: The second item of business is the auditor's report. Auditors 

report has been submitted from Darren Adamson of the fi rm Avail CPA. 

May I have a motion to adopt financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2017 

Moved - Kevin Finn 

Second - Larry Cooper 

Vote - Motion carried 

7. Appointment of Auditors 

Chairman: The next item of business is the appointment of auditors of the 

Corporation. It is proposed that Avail, Chartered Professional 

Accountants, be re-appointed as the auditors of the Corporation and that 

the directors be authorized to set the auditor's remuneration for the 



- 5 -

ensuing year. May I have a motion to appoint Avail, Chartered 

Professional Accountants, as auditors of the Corporation for the ensuing 

year and to authorize the directors to set the auditor's remuneration. 

Moved - Dean Prodan 

Second - Gerry Perry 

Vote - Motion carried 

I declare that the motion is carried, Avail CPA has been appointed the 

Corporation's auditors for the ensuing year and the directors are 

authorized to set the auditors' remuneration." 

8. Election of Directors 

Chairman: The next item of business is the election of directors. As Nominating Chair 

I will share the nominations. 

Brian McGurk Nominating Chair 

Nominating chair: We have four vacancies on the board of directors this year. 

Rod Lanier 

Cheryl de Leeuw 

Adam Judd 

Ian Miller 

As chair of the nominating committee I would like to nominate the 

following directors standing for re-election: 

Nominating Chairman: The persons nominated are management's nominees for election 

as directors, as stated in the notice of meeting circular sent to 

shareholders. Are there any further nominations? 



- 6 -

Are there any further nominations from the floor? 

Are there any further nominations from the floor? 

Are there any further nominations from the floor? 

Nominating Chairman: "I declare nominations closed. Four persons have been nominated to 

fill the four positions for Directors. Mr. Chair, there is no need to request 

a brief adjournment of the meeting to complete and count the Ballots. 

Chairman: Results of the election: 

Rod Lanier - elected 

Cheryl de Leeuw - elected 

Adam Judd - elected 

Ian Miller - elected. 

Chairman: 

Chairman: 

May I have a single motion approving the election of Rod Lanier, Cheryl 

de Leeuw, Adam Judd and Ian Miller as Directors of the Corporation to 

hold office for the ensuing 2 years or until their successors are appointed 

or elected? 

Moved - Karen Perry 

Second - Carolyn Armstrong 

Vote - Motion Carried 

I declare that Rod Lanier, Cheryl de Leeuw, Adam Judd, and Ian Miller 

have been elected as Directors of the Corporation for the ensuing 2 

years, until the next annual meeting- of the shareholders of the 

Corporation or until their successors have been elected or appointed. 

"Is there any further business to come before the meeting? 

There being none, the meeting is concluded." 

Can I have a motion to adjourn? 

Moved - Fraser Stewart 

Second - Goldie Weeks 



- 7 -

Vote - Motion carried 

I declare that the 2017 Annual meeting of the common shareholders of Castle Mountain Resort 

Inc. is concluded. 



Leo Reedyk 

RECEIVED 

SEP J 9 2018 
Subject: Fwd: Hwy 3:02_04 FPS - Public Open House 

Bellevue MOM Location: 

Start: 
End: 

Thu 2018-11-29 3:00 PM 
Thu 2018-11 -29 8:00 PM 

Recurrence: (none) 

Accepted Meeting Status: 

Organizer: HWY 3 Functional Planning Study 

FYI 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: "HWY 3 Functional Planning Study" <hwy3fps@islengineering.com> 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

"  
Subject: Hwy 3:02 _ 04 FPS - Public Open House 

The Hwy 3 functional planning study public information session is anticipated to be held on 
Thursday November 29 at the Bellevue MDM. We will present the recommended plan for the 
project area (Sentinel to Pincher Station). Members of the project team will be available to 
answer your questions. PRC members are requested to invite council to arrive an hour in 
advance of the public session. 

Council Special Session 3-4pm 
Public Info Session 4-8pm 

1 



i(o..,n t( - l/c> i.,l 

r=-01 Supparf-i'hj 

~ e. Pi n c..--h -er 
C.r -e-e k !--t •j I, 
Sc.hoC) l Q,cJ._ o 

'ECEfV 0 

~EP 1 9 :, ·o 
M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK 

MADE WITH PAPER FROM 
WELL-MANAGED FORESTS 





OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION 

MINUTES - 2 (2018) 

ANNUAL GENERAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING 

Thursday, June 7, 2018 - 7:00 p.m. 
ORRSC Confer.ence Room (3105-16 Avenue North, Lethbridge) 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

Kevyn Stevenson ...................... Village of Arrowwood Brad Koch (absent) .......................... Village of Lomond 
Delbert Bodnarek (absent) .............. Village of Barnwell Russ Barnett • Mayor ........................ Town of Magrath 
Ed Weistra ...... ................................. Village of Barons Peggy Losey ................ , ................ Town of Milk River 
Tom Rose .(absent) ...................... .... Town of Bassano Louis Myers ............ ............. .................. Village or Milo 
Dan Klein. - Councillor .•...........•.............• City of Brooks Dan Mclelland .................................. Town of Nanton 
Jim Bester ....................... ,. ......... ..... Cardston County Clarence Amulung ............................. County of Newell 
Richard Beng_ry ............................... Town of Cardston Marinus de Leeuw .... , .................. Village of Nobleford 
Peggy Hovde ............................ Village of Carmangay Henry de Kok (absent) ............... Town of Picture Butte 
Jamie Smith ................................ Village of Champion Bev Everts .... .................... , ...... M.O. of Pincher Creek 
Doug MacPherson ...................... Town of Claresholm Lorne Jackson - Councillor .......... Town Pincher Creek 
Butch Pauls .............. ........... ........... Town of Coaldale Ronald Davis (absent) ............. .. ..... M.D. of Ranchland 
Heather Caldwell ......... , ................. Town of Coalhurst Greg Robinson .............................. Town of Raymond 
Tanya Smith ..................... ................ Vil.lage of Coutts Don Norby (absent) ................ ............ Town of Stavely 
Warren Mickels (absent) ................... Village of Cowley Matthew Foss ................................... Village of Stirling 
Dave Filipuzzi .......................... Mun. Ctowsnest Pass Jennifer Crowson .................................. M.D. of Taber 
Dean Ward .............................. Mun. Crowsnest Pass Margaret Plumtree (ilbsent) ....... ....... Town of Vauxhall 
Gordon Wolstenholme ..... .. ....... Town of Fort Macleod Jason Schneider .. ...... ......................... Vulcan County 
David Rolfson (absent) ................ Village of Glenwood Lyle Magnuson ................................... Town of Vulcan 
Barin Beresford (absent) ....... ............ Town of Granum David Cody .................................... County of Warner 
Suzanne French .................. ..... .. Village of Hill Spring Eric Burns ......................... .............. Village of Warner 
Morris Zeinstra (absent) ................. Lethbridge County Maryanne Sandberg • Alternate .... .. M.O. Willow Creek 

STAFF: 

Lenze Kuiper .. ........... ..... .. ............. ................. Director Cameron Mills ................................................ Planner 
Bonnie Brunner .......................... .... .... Senior Planner Stacy Olsen ..................................... Assistant Planner 
Mike Burla ................... , ...................... Senior Planner Mladen Kristie .. ... ..................... CAD/GlS Technologist 
Steve Harty, ............. , .......................... Senior Planner Yueu Majok ...... , ..................... CAD/GIS Technologist 
Diane Horvath ....................... , ............ Senior Planner Kaylee Sailer .. ........................ CAD/GI$ Technologist 
Gavin Scott ..................... .................... Senior Planner Jennifer Maxwell .................... Subdivision Technician 
Ian MacDougall ........................................ ...... Planner 

AGENDA: 

1. Approval of Agenda - June 7, 2018 .... ........................................................................................ .. ... .. . 

2018 ORRSC Board of Directors' Minutes - Page 6 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
H3a



2. Approval of Minutes - March 1, 2018 ............................................................................... (attachment) 

3. Business Arising from the Minutes ..... ., ............ ....................... ............. .. .... ................................... ... . . 

4. Reports 
(a) Executive Committee Report ...... ...................... ........ .. .................. ........... .. ..... ..... ..... ..... (attachment) 

5. Business 
(a) Draft ORRSC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2017 .. .................................... (attachment) 
(b) Draft Policy- Intellectual Property/Copyright .... .. ............ ..... .............. ........................................... .. 
(c) Cannabis Update .............................................................. ............ ............ ..................................... . . 

6. Accounts 
(a) Summary of Balance Sheet and Statement of Income for the 3-month period: 

January 1 - March 31 , 2018 ..... ............................................ .... ... ......... .......................... (attachment) 

7. Adjournment - September 6, 2018 ......... ..... ......................... .................. ............ ............................... . 

CHAIR GORDON WOLSTENHOLME CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:00 P.M. 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Moved by: Doug MacPherson 

THAT the Board of Directors approve the agenda of June 7, 2018, as presented. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Moved by: Ed Weistra 

THAT the Board of Directors approves the minutes of March 1, 2018, as presented. 

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

None. 

4. REPORTS 

CARRIED 

CARRIED 

(a) Executive Committee Report ............... ... ........ ........... ..................... ........ .................... (attachment) 

• Chair Gordon Wolstenholme reviewed the Executive Committee Report for the meetings of 
February 15, April 12 and May 10, 2018, for information. 

2018 ORRSC Board of Directors' Minutes - Page 7 



"M~Y.,tI ~y;/~r~gf.lqh:in~on, 

··•'i~:~~;:tii9;;~::i~:b~~~:h;i:r;:i:~~JtJ~~:i~i:y:,::6~~$J:i~t~i1;·~Pki1~.qf. 
:qARRl5D.' 

(b.)··. t:>f~f\'i~on~~•-dnt,l(e.p!~~,,p~9,»~~Y!¢opy,:ighJ 
' ,. ::lieqz.e)~UlpJ~t\P,i'esente~htl1$'.B.gatq:cWi\li.·~:'Copy'rig~t/'i.!i1tellecru~i'.,Rfb'p8-i1fis§«~~ 'PIMi~ri~rri· 

iiilZ\;~r!t::!i~i!t:~~~$Jiif:i~~:~:,~f 
... , • .< J=J~~~nil~t .~fl~:)· :rn~,rtlQ~f'. t:rrll.inici.~aJiW · /~ke_tj as J?tiY~ie,. ,cgn~~Ciltaflt: '!9\. '.P.~$g~t~r•:~: J1J~~r'li~$,; 

· ,dp~lltnent1: •· ·T~~::pt~riruQgJk1cument',09ntam,eg maps.)v1th"tl;l~ ,.0RRS,Q,,tqg9·:~n,c;t W~rf~.,us,e_t,I,. 

iif llilft~~li~~ii;ii~iEiii!ii~ilt~l:!~i1? 
'Q~R§G:tp,:pf<?Xlc:fe.~duefeition·or1,~ltf:lll~,c9P,yrigHt.•r~ql:l,it~roe,r:i~stq'.fbi:3,eflgr,:iiqip~liti~~~- · 

fRIN~l!eLl=$tOF .E;NQ~P.f;,l:Jl;Ri;Dl§TF.U!:31.}TIOJ\I. Ri@HT$: 
Aii~Lf $ PsL~,Albe~~ o~•~rP~,fo~.rt?l:01?$ · (AOP). and ;theii\par:tnen~, atw~Yl? , reta.irj'.'QW.Ilerst,ip .• 

. -~ngggQI:,Y.!'.i~~t,ti;fthl:l :1:>st§Ef tt!~P/d~ta~; · · ·· · ... · ·, · . , . . · · ·· , .. 

The,'li¢.en~:~\~n,ct.·µse1'Qf:ex~ra,ctable,AJtl:lL,IS.·datasets::ifttfleir~b'dg·ioat;orv~1µeJa~~e,c!J6rrp~r 
remair.1 withJhEf uc~n~ed,;$rj~:·user: ',.lt'iltth~·.eod. u$er's,resp0,11siOi!itf ~o. ea~yte1hat·there:is: 
no J.malltl;l~ti~ed<i:iset}~f':th~{licen~e:d.di\ta by~othersi · · ··· · ····, < · · ·· 

.:aeaist(ibuUo~ o~aiJ,~~fte?t~b!S7if6"(1Jia~•·is•.P~9hibit~? ••• ~~c~~t~~l~t°:~i,9,~di~el9~;, . ,,., 
"" H~~is'ti:it>~UP,rtqf.b,o~hrextract~~le:and,non~extractal;i!i;tdat~,j&P~rtnittedwith:My. 

- '.;i1;;;:!~ci~~:t~:::;:;;!!i;~::.::~d~:.i:s;;;~'t;r~;;;;:t;i::~r~~,:~;~;~;1~1. 
·tne licensed•erid.,iiser,u· · oh cofo ··· 1etibn of s 'hedul~r1s· of tneie. d'-'usef lief ns:e:,tbe' 
.,., ... ,,.·,.•·· , ... •<'••· .. "' .... P., ..... p ....... o.. ...... . ... n ...... e, .. ~.,. 

;Wdtt~n:ijng~ct~~i.n(:J; · · · · · , 

'!~~l~~1P}1~ffK1r~:ri~t~~~i,!~rait~c:::i~a~;~~~:i!~~~t~:jii~,¥j~ :~:i,~;,f ~~~. 
piJ.rpha~e::ih~~dafa,lilr,cl-atjain thekown end;userJ.icen$e: . . . . .. . . . . 

,., 'The;,~'~,m~:prtv.~te:contr~c~br .ls·naw us.ing~policie.s·frpn\O.Rl3SOJ>Ja.n,t1lng'-d.o#~rn~lit$'Worc1:1or 
wot<:i Jg. :B\~,~t JJocurr1ent~Jb~lhQ prepa.recfin the Eqrrjotitqri regJort · N,cir1Ei::oloth~ • ijQlici_es,·a,re: 



pr,qp.~rlt/~9,YJ9,~g ~fl~' Q,F\B,$.¢ :-has: tiPt · Q,eent 9,iven (;;f~qrt fqntti~ ',WP.rk, · •Lf;l,O~~ :P.i~"t,e~~e9 · 
e?(~l'riple~;off1911(worJ<s ~re,Jo'be pr,qp~rly sourcep in dqqumen,s\ . 

• Thenf',W,~ :soti)~ ,discussioh 'afl'.l~ng th,e b_oar4 -rner;nh~r~, and fepf~~-~:6tati~;~1' :from; tb¢· 
munipipalities\. there··wasia consensfls. ttiat ttih:i' issuerba~\~ecl)fileaargei?than;,ntended:.and 
~9,ul~f :h,ave. :t;>e,,e,n· c:(e~Jt Wifl1 dif{ereriJl11;s Se\fe·(~I rnµr;iicipJ~liiies ;pt,{rite~/qutth~Vthey ,;share 
infgn:n~t,iqn wtto ·\1Jeir·-neighl,?9rs anq cfqJtt- w~np tq. !Pl?,~ J,h,a.t. ~!;lili~y,._. but:plc1.giiqrism: 1s not · 
!!~1c.,J?lEl.bcl~~ . ~~11:z~:rea~s.~r~d,"t_he ·r:r1,~n,ip,ii:,13.li)ies:,tJ1J~t :theKo.~n:;ttleirJ;t,a,nn.ing-dpqt,l,:tt~nts·-ar;id 
th~y,:ate avana,o_lE:fahJ1Jme and-~~h bE? t,fovi_ded'.Jn Word :forr:n.at;Jt, teg~es~9:d; · · • 

e; .. 0R:1:tsc,fi'~s-rec'elived leg~I :attvice'te.create•;ari .in,ellect(Jal:Pl'opertylCqpy~jght Pdiiqy. Adr.aft 
qf~tbi$p9ticy'YVillJ>e?pret>are/:l.~m.ts~nt:9L1fprior,~0Jhe.,ne~t~o~rg,me~!ing,in;~f=pternber,. · 

(c~ cannatiis',dpt.tat~ · 
·~j ~a~in,ScgttPJ8\3~nt~d 1h~:'!:3of;lrd:wit.lhct. Oannabi~; tipci1:1te;, 'Wil!ithe;f~galizali9n 6fcann~bis. 

)tiere·,~~t:(tl1Ji~,gp(igns'lti:~l:rnqnic;:ip~litie~•fc;111,~h9os~lfrqr:n.f,o_r,thei,rL~~-~~,(J,:~~,,1:3y1?w.s:. · · 
()~tionJ:, You, coUld .do' 011oth,ing ,.buf then ,you}risk' J:ieeqing·: 16 peal ,W.ittiA~ture/applications 

witHbUtaoy're,.gulation~fii:lplaC:e. - , , , . .. . . . . . . . . . 

9Rl19.IJ \~;, 'µ.1>~ fh~ : Qlrect ¢onfrqf ?Rrting ·_· 9(~jr:iqf,t9 , l~cty~ : the\, 'cipprovAI~ •h1, ,th.E!J-,an~~-• of' 
'G.ci4QPiJ; . . .. . .. 

Optio~ 3;, Amend •the L<3:11d C:Use ,E3ylaw: in yourirhunicipality'to:'cr:$ata:setbEicks! buffers Jrom 
. Scliools, fitealtl'.ffacmties.or othefuses· · · , · · · · 

·. ,.. . .,.. . '/ - . 

..•. ,lrr#~~)!i~(lJ9,rtJ1,r:k~n,c!:W,~~'~y1~w. 111~1ii~Jp~liJ1,E!~{:~Il,l}r,i9f~cf,1?\e,~arr1W~;,i~~Jf,$~QkiQ~'E3yl~";V· 
~n<;:IJ3,µ~1.n,eE>.~;~1qen~~;: 13,yl~yy; ,AUMA; rec,:e_11tlt,c~roe9µ,t :\YI!~ i~.n ~tt,g!~ ~o,r,tyvhY, yoll,: g{;lnt 
e~ti1l~IJ§,f'i,,~JJtoJ~tLban;_oh,cannabis. ··WQen; itcomes .to:tl)e·-sigryag~ tor'i"eia;n '.foc~tiQris-· qf 
Q~ohii~is; mi.ini~ip~lities' ·can, _tjmiftlie size.·andi,colots:,ot~tl:\~t jigns':~qfiq~ilti'c;ifi:controt ;tne 
:content due•fo:tne·: Charter'6f Riijnts: 'Eclibt~s-wnrcontihue, to:tJ'efille'ijat fbr~notnet yee;f · · 

,. It,w~?t~¢PITim~~9e"c;fJQ. ~\~rt ~i~c~~~jQn$f~Qc:tfgjr:i,g 'Qa:onab.'iij :wlt!i ygµr,: planr.i~I';, ]f;you, '~~v~--
09.f done.:so:alreiacL · · · · · ·· · . ... .. , .... · .. ,. , .. ,,.,:-:---------,-- .Y. 

. .. . 

·•<~> :Summar' ':'QfBalance s11eet.anc:J'Sfatementoflncome:fofttie:3imonth:·'' eriod: i~~ri~@rv,~:~,:r;n~ .. ~fo~1,:~91~ ,. ·· · · · , ·. , ·· · · · , · , · · ·· · · p · , ,, 

.Movetfby: Lorne Jackso'n 
;tfHAl':',tli; :t3~~~:oi:tiir¢itots.:accepnhe, s:urnmaj'y'Of :,13.a'1ince•:Sij~et::ano:'$tiatemeht"of, Income. 
·1 ot'the:~rmontfi,'perid_d: Jarjt1ary 1 ,~ March· st; :2p1a,, as; int #rmation, · · · · ,CARRH:Q 

.• , ....• . - ,. ,_. ,<. . . . .. 

~"ved'by:s; Pit!9SY:t9~e.y . . _ . . _ . . . . . . . .. . . . . _ . . 
!HJ\ T w~{?djourn the, Anh4at · Gi;in~ral, Bq*rc,t,otOJre~tors'-· Meeting; of: th.~ 0ldftian· Hiv~:r Regipri~t 
,$ervice8' Qpmmission::aFB;t21p:rn, until rtn.ir.sday;iS.~pter.nber ~; .201.ltatt;OQ'Ji;aj~ . . • , GARR I Ell, 



Beaver Mines Community Association 
Annual General Meeting 
September 8, 2018 - 10:00AM 

In attendance: Bert Nyrose, Marley Nyrose, Edna Layton, Lynn Calder, Pat Black, Bob 
Black, Ken Fast, Marie Everts, Sam Schofield, Dave McNeill, Linde Farley, Cathy 
Scrimshaw, Gord Peterson, Jolaine Kelly, Kevin Kelly, Jeff McLarty, Steph McLarty, 
Mark Pinard, Tyler Pereverziff, Breanne Pereverziff, Mike Morley, Brandy Fisher, 
Matthew Fisher, Bernie Bonertz, Pete Falkenberg, Bev Everts, Carolyn McLaurie, 
Wayne McLaurie 

i. Call to order 
Meeting called to order at 10:05AM by Pete Falkenberg. 

ii. Approval of Agenda 
Pat Black approves agenda, Ken Fast seconds. 

iii. Reading and adoption of last years AGM minutes 
Clarifications about the previous AGM minutes were captured during the 
September 23, 2017 BMCA board meeting. Clarifications included change in 
treasurer position and signing authorities (see September 23, 2017 Minutes 
under item #1). AGM minutes approved by Mark Pinard and seconded by 
Lynn Calder. 

iv. President's Report 
Presented by Pete Falkenberg. Pete discussed last years AGM and the 
eligibility of voters; this resulted in the BMCA deciding to review the current 
bylaws and make some revisions. Pete highlighted committees formed 
throughout the year: FireSmart, Park Planning, Sewer & Water Advisory 
Committee, & Bylaw Review Committee. Pete spoke about the request put in 
to the MD to build a replica miners cabin. 

v. Treasurer's Report 
Presented by Lynn Calder. Lynn discussed the financial statement, receiving 
grant money from Joint Council Funding/Landfill Grant/ Co-op Dividend 
$2,260.65 and FireSmart $1,050.00. Some money was made on events. Drink 
prices were increased this year so the BMCA breaks even, and doesn't lose 
money on the bar. BMCA has $2,447.97 in the bank. A question from Jeff 
McLarty was presented about BMCA using a lawyer for annual return, 
however it was confirmed the Treasurer does this. Treasurer report 
approved by Jeff McLarty and seconded by Breanne Pereverziff. Lynn 
discussed BMCA financial year-end is September 30 in the bylaws, but 
changed (not in bylaw) to August 31 to present the audited financial 
statement for the AGM. Dave McNeill and Mark Pinard audited report this 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
H3b



year. Lynn brought up requirement to nominate a member of the board for 
auditing annual returns; Dave McNeill volunteered, all in favor. 

vi. Secretary Report 
Presented by Breanne Pereverziff. Breanne discussed BMCA hosted events 
and importance of attendance. In total, 6 events were held. Grants were 
applied for last year and received. Currently we are applying for this years 
grants. Dave McNeill asked what the Pincher Creek/Crowsnest Landfill $250 
was for, response: it was for Pickle ball equipment. Marie Everts asked if the 
BMCA uses the grant writer resources. Breanne responded no; there has not 
been a need as of yet, Marie offers to assist with the grant writing. Sam 
Schofield discussed grants available for historical preservation. Secretary 
report approved by Linde Farley, seconded by Lynn Calder. 

vii. MD Report 
Presented by Bev Everts. Next regular MD meeting scheduled for September 
11, 2018 at 1:00PM. 

• Sewer and Water update: Thanks to the BMCA for all they are doing in 
regards to questions and advisory committee. Terms of Reference are 
in draft and will be sent to BMCA once approved. There are currently 
2 locations for the wastewater site, both are undergoing geotechnical 
analysis. This is a priority of the MD. The crossing for the Castle River 
is unapproved at this time; MD is pressuring the Environment 
Minister for approval. 

• In regards to the current rental agreement for the Beaver Mines 
Gazebo, the MD is working on an Owner /Operator Agreement 
between the MD and BMCA - this will be brought to the next council 
meeting for discussion. 

• Permanent CAO position recruitment is underway. 
• Cannabis Legislation - Two areas of focus for the MD Council are retail 

stores and production facilities. A draft bylaw for public input will be 
posted prior to council approval. 

viii. Review and Adoption of Bylaw Changes 
Presented by Pete Falkenberg. Pete discussed plan for changes in the bylaws; 
opened the floor for discussion and plan to vote on the changes. Pete 
suggests voting on the changes to the bylaws as a whole, not item per item. 
Questions were raised on how these changes were determined. Jeff motions 
to vote on the document as presented, Pat Black seconds - not all in favor. 
The group then decided to amend item #1 of the bylaws and vote on change. 
Amendment reads: "We establish a 2nd tier of members who do not own land 
within the boundaries of the hamlet, such members would have voting rights 
for social activities only- no boundaries are set around hamlet". This 
amendment was voted on, and passed. Current Vice-President Jeff McLarty 



resigns from BMCA. A vote for the adoption of the entire document is held, 
the vote passes. 

ix. Election of Officers 
The new BMCA executive for 2018-2019 is: 
President - Pete Falkenberg 
Vice-President - Tyler Pereverziff 
Honorary Past President - Mike Morley 
Treasurer - Lynn Calder 
Secretary- Rob Bronson 
BMCA Directors - Ken Fast, Bernie Bonertz, Sam Schofield, Breanne 
Pereverziff, Jolaine Kelly, Linde Farley, Bert Nyrose 

x. New Business 
a. Sewer and Water Advisory Committee will be meeting with Leo from 

the MD on Monday at 2:00PM. Suggested MD to include in tender the 
landowner service hook - ups on one contract. 

b. Beaver Mines Contact List- Currently in Jeff McLarty's hands, this 
will need to be followed up on. Distribute to everyone on BMCA email 
list then provide to community. 

c. Laneway & Bike Path - Landowners suggested to MD that 
landowners could purchase the laneway prior to Sewer and Water 
installation to reduce service set up costs of the MD. No discussion 
about bike path. 

xi. Next Regular Board Meeting 
September 29, 2018 at 10:00AM 

xii. Adjournment 
Linde Farley motions to adjourn meeting, Ken Fast seconds. Meeting 
adjourned at 11:53AM. 



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes Aug 15, 2018 

THE CROWSNEST/PINCHER CREEK LANDFILL ASSOCIATION 

MINUTES 

August 15, 2018 

The regular meeting of The Crowsnest/Pincher Creek Landfill Association was held on 

Wednesday, August 15, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the Landfill administration office. 

Present: 

AGENDA 

Dave Filipuzzi 

Terry Yagos, Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9 

Dean Ward, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass 

Dave Filipuzzi, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass 

Gord Lundy, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass 

Mary Kittlaus, Village of Cowley 

Emile Saindon, Landfill Manager 

Jean Waldner, Office Administrator 

Moved the agenda be adopted as presented. 

MINUTES 

Dean Ward 

Moved the minutes of July 18, 2018 be adopted as circulated 

MANAGER'S REPORT 
1. MSW volumes are steady over the last month with summer volumes. 

Carried. 08.15.18-1013 

Carried. 08.1s.1a-1014 

2. The Industrial cell volumes have increased for the month of July with August expected to be 

the same. 

3. Storm water pond excavations completed and water being pumped into them. 

4. Cardboard recycling has doubled in July. 

5. Grass mowing 75% completed. 

6. Devon clean up on going. 

7. Preparing site for new NSW cell construction this fall . 

8. Plan in place to install landfill gas monitoring wells and trench. 

9. WRAP audit completed in the past few weeks. 

10. Landfill tours completed with 7 sites visited, report and pictures to follow. 

11. Landfill amendment approval received, discussion on next steps requ ired . . 

Mary Kittlaus 

Moved that the Manager's report be accepted for information. Carried. 08.15.18-1015 

AdminExecAsst
Text Box
H5a



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes Aug 15, 2018 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

The Income Statement and Balance sheet to August 2nd, 2018 was reviewed. And an update 

on the All West accounts receivable issue was discussed. 

Dave Filipuzzi 

Moved that the financial reports be accepted for information. Carried. 08.1s.1s-101G 

INCINERATOR AMMENDMENT APPROVAL 

We finally received approval from Environment Canada on our amendment to our landfill 

operator's approval to include operating an'incinerator here at our landfill. It must go 

through an appeal process first. If everything goes well our next steps will be meeting with 

all the community organization that would benefit from bringing carcass's here, the CFIA, 

and putting together a business plan to submit for government funding. 

Mary Kittlaus 

Moved this correspondence be accepted for information; Carried. o8.15.1a-1on 

DONATION REQUEST 

A Donation request from the Town of Pincher Creek for their Children's Festival. 

Dean Ward 

·· Moved that $200.00 be donated for the Children's Festival. Carried. 08.15.18-1018 

A Donation request from the Friends of the Library for their Alberta Cultural Day September 

.28th
, 2018. 

Dave Filipuzzi 

Moved that $350.00 be donated for their Alberta Cultural Day Event. Carried. 08.15.18-1019 

SCHOLARSHIP REQUEST 

A scholarship request from Natalie Krizan from St Michael's School was presented to the 

board. It was decided that she meets all our scholarship qualifications, and once we receive 

her 1st semester passing marks a cheque will be forwarded to her. 

Dave Filipuzzi 

Moved Natalie Krizan receive our Landfill Scholarship. Carried. os.15.1a.1080 



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes Aug 15, 2018 

Correspondence: 
A Thank you letter was distributed from the York Creek Lodge. 

NEXT MEETING DATES 

September 12, 2018 
October 17, 2018 

Tabled Items 

ADJOURNMENT 
Mary Kittlaus 

November 21, 2018 
December 19, 2018 

Moved the meeting adjourn at 9:55 a.m. 

~ ~ ··. CHAIR AN · .. 

Carried. 08.1s.1a-1081 


	Agenda
	B1 RAP
	B2 Heritage Acres
	B3 Lundbreck
	C1 CCM
	C2 Council
	E1 West Path
	E2 Chickesn
	E3 Sekella
	E4 First Student
	F1a BM
	F1b Ops
	F2a Riverview
	F4a CAO
	G1a info
	H3a ORRSC
	H3b BMCA
	H5a landfill



